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500 W. Blg BEaver
Troy, Ml 48084
(248) 524-2300

The City of Tomorrow...

November 23, 2011

Dear Honorable Mayor and City Council Members:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the City of Troy, Michigan for the year
ended June 30, 2011 is hereby submitted. The report represents a comprehensive and detailed
picture of our financial transactions during fiscal year 2010/11 and the financial condition of the
various funds as of fiscal year end. This report was prepared by a team of City staff led by
Thomas E. Darling, Interim Director of Finance and Administration Services. Troy's staff is
responsible for the accuracy of data and completeness and fairness of the presentation,

including all disclosures.

A Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report (MD&A), as well as entity-wide, full accrual
financial statements have been added to the front of the financial statement section. The fund
statements have been altered to provide reporting under the “Major/Non-major Fund” concept.
Reconciliation between the two presentations is included and the note disclosures have been
expanded to provide appropriate information on both the entity-wide and fund financial

statements.

The information presented is accurate in all material respects. Financial data presented is
designed to provide the reader with information to assist in determining both the long-term fiscal
health of the City of Troy and the City of Troy’s ability to meet obligations on a short-term basis.

As required by Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), these financial statements
present the City of Troy and related component units. The individual component units are
included in the City of Troy’s reporting entity because of the significance of their operational or

financial relationships with the City of Troy.

The financial reporting entity includes all of the primary government (the City of Troy as legally
defined). The criteria used in determining the reporting entity are consistent with current GAAP
guidelines. Based on these criteria, the various funds of the City are shown in the table of
contents and are included in this report. We have addressed all component units.

The City of Troy was incorporated in 1955 and has always operated under the Council-Manager
form of government. The Mayor and six members of the City Council are elected to staggered

four-year terms.

The City Manager is appointed by a majority vote of the City Council and is responsible for all
administrative functions. The City provides a full range of municipal services, including police,
fire, water distribution, wastewater collection, street maintenance, public improvements,
planning, zoning, recreation and general administration.

www.troymi.gov Vil



Economic CONDITION
AND QUTLOOK

The economic condition of the City of Troy has reflected the downturn of the State and National
economies to some degree. Our unemployment rate is well below the state and metro area

average.

July 2011
Troy 9.5%
Oakland County 10.9%
Metro Area* 12.5%
Michigan 11.0%
National 9.3%

*The Metro Area includes Lapeer, Livingston, Macomb, Monroe, Oakland, St. Clair and
Wayne Counties

The growth in taxable value has slowed and even turned negative in recent years indicative of
the overall real estate market compared to the 1980s, 1990s and the highpoint in 2008. The
taxable value for the 2011 levy (to fund the 2012 fiscal year) decreased 8.2% or $395 million.
This compares to the prior 2010 levy (that funded 2011 fiscal year) which decreased 11.3% or
$616 million In Michigan, only the City of Detroit has a higher taxable value than the City of
Troy. However, in this era of competition for business retention and attraction, we need to
advance a preferred future in which residents and businesses continue to aspire to locate here.

The City has expanded upon its budgeting practices by including five-year budget projections
and the adoption of a three-year budget. Our approach to funding major capital projects is to
accumulate funds over a number of years to avoid the issuance of debt. The City has adopted a
policy to maintain our Unassigned General Fund Balance at 15% of General Fund Expenditures.

Other significant economic events occurring during the fiscal year include the following major
initiatives, which more often than not span several years:

Multi-Modal Transit Center

This project will feature a multi-model center for high speed train, bus, cab and limousine
service. Design and construction costs are fully funded through the Federal Rail Administration
and the Michigan Department of Transportation. Please note that City Council is going to decide
whether to proceed with this project or abandon it. Should City Council proceed with the project,
the project is expected to be complete by October 2014 at a cost of approximately $8.3 million.

Dialogue-Marketing, Inc.

Dialogue-Marketing, Inc., a provider of customer relationship management services, is planning
to invest $5.0 million to expand their call center and customized software development
operations in Troy. The project is expected to create up to 230 direct new jobs.
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Magna Steyr, L.L.C.

This operating unit of Magna International, plans to invest $765 thousand to expand operations
in Troy and create up to 200 direct new jobs.

Inteva Products, L.L.C.

This leading OEM world supplier (formerly Delphi Interiors & Closures) plans to invest $4.9
million to expand and renovate its world headquarters and technical center in Troy. The project
is expected to create up to 67 total jobs, including 35 directly at the company. The MEDC
estimates the increased economic activity created by the project has the potential to create an

additional 32 indirect jobs.
Meritor Heavy Vehicle Systems, L.L.C. — Arvin Meritor, Inc.

This global supplier of systems and components to commercial truck, industrial and aftermarket
customers plans to invest more than $23 million over five years in its technology center located
in Troy. This project is expected to create 125 jobs at the company. The MEDC estimates the
increased economic activity created by this program has the potential to create an additional
122 indirect jobs. This growth will augment more than 700 technical and professional employees
at the company’s headquarters.

FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal control designed
to ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that
adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met.

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: 1) The cost of a control should not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and 2) The valuation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgments by management.

Single Audit

As a recipient of Federal, State, and local financial assistance, the City is also responsible for
ensuring that adequate internal control is in place to ensure and document compliance with
applicable laws and regulations related to these programs. This internal control is subject to
periodic evaluation by management and the independent auditors of the City.

As a part of the single audit process, tests are made by the auditors to determine the adequacy
of the internal control structure, including that portion related to Federal financial assistance
programs, as well as to determine that the City has complied with the applicable laws and

regulations.
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Budgeting Controls

The object of budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the
annual appropriated budget approved by the City Council.

Activities of the General and Special Revenue Funds are included in the annual appropriated
budget. The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally
exceed the appropriated amount) is established by function for the General Fund and fund level
for special revenue funds.

General Government Functions

Generally accepted accounting standards require that management provide a narrative
introduction, overview and analysis to accompany these basic financial statements in the form of

the MD&A letter.

This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. The City of Troy’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of
the independent auditors. Since the MD&A focuses on the government-wide financial
statements, the balance of this letter will be directed at the fund or activity level.

The General Fund receives all City of Troy revenues not designated for special uses by statutes
or the City Charter and accounts for most of the services provided to residents. Overall General
Fund revenues decreased by $4.9 million or 8.9% from the prior year. Property taxes in the
General Fund decreased by $3.8 million or 10.5%.

State sources remained level from the prior year at approximately $5.8 million. State shared
revenue is the major source of revenue, which is a return to local governments of a portion of
state sales tax and is not restricted to use.

Other revenues decreased by $1.0 million or 37.9% due to a one time transfer from the
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority in the prior year.

Total General Fund operating expenditures decreased by 8.4%. This reduction was achieved
primarily through payroll and related benefit decreases through employee layoffs, wage
concessions and early retirement incentive programs.

General Fund Balance

Fund balance of the General Fund increased by $1.9 million to a balance of $27,465,155. Of
this amount, $4,034,119 is nonspendable for such items as inventory and prepaid items;
$1,508,257 is restricted for budget stabilization, $3,610,131 has been committed to the
subsequent years budget and Volunteer Firefighters Incentive Reserve at $2,610,131 and
$1,000,000, respectively, and $5,953,000 has been assigned for insurance claims at $3,753,000
and tax appeals at $2,200,000. The $12,359,648 remaining unassigned amount represents
23.0% of General Fund expenditures. This amount exceeds our 15% goal and is considered
adequate to provide funds for unforeseen future negative events, and any upcoming budget
shortfalls.
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Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to
expenditures for particular purposes. The Special Revenue Funds of the City include:

Major Street Fund — Gas and weight tax revenues received in this fund from the State of
Michigan are used for repairs, maintenance, snow and ice removal, and construction of all

streets classified as “major” within the city.

Local Street Fund — Gas and weight taxes as well as a transfer of funds from the Major Street
Fund to finance the repairs, maintenance, snow and ice removal, and construction of all streets

classified as “local” within the city.

Refuse Fund - This fund has been established to account for property tax revenues restricted for
rubbish and garbage collection and service charges for recycling.

Community Development Block Grant — This fund accounts for grant revenues from the
Department of Housing and Urban Development to be used for residential and other capital
improvements. Major activities in this fund include minor home chore program for seniors and
infrastructure improvements.

Enterprise Operations

The City operates five separate enterprise operations: Water Fund, Sanitary Sewer Fund,
Aquatic Center Fund, Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Funds.

Water Fund - Operating revenues remained level at $14.1 million compared to prior year.
Operating expenses also remained consistent with prior year at $12.4 million. The economy
and weather conditions can have a significant effect on our water consumption.

Sanitary Sewer Fund - Generated $11.9 million in operating revenues as compared to $10.4
million in the prior year due to an increase in sewage disposal fees. Operating expenses
increased proportionally with revenues totaling $10.4 million, compared to $9.1 million last fiscal
year. These rates are reviewed annually during budget time to ensure proper funding for
operations and maintenance and improvements to the system.

Aquatic Center - Continues to operate at a loss. The operating loss of $62,496 shows
improvement compared to a net loss of $116,174 last fiscal year. Operating revenues increased
$52,000 compared to prior year due to favorable weather conditions for this activity. Operating
expenses remained level at $566,000. The City has taken measures to increase usage and
continues to look at ways to reduce the net loss.

Sylvan Glen Golf Course Fund - Ended the year with an increase in net assets of $14,296. This
amount compares to an increase of $50,389 last fiscal year.
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Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Fund - Ended the year with a decrease in net assets of $582,841
compared to a $664,226 decrease in net assets last fiscal year. Steps have been taken to
increase play and continue to reduce the loss, with the hiring of Billy Casper Golf to manage and
operate both golf courses.

Internal Service Funds

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by
one department to other departments of the government, on a cost reimbursement basis.

Compensated Absences Fund — This fund accounts for the charges to other departments based
on sick and vacation accruals. The expenses of accumulated sick pay and vacation pay are
then recorded in this fund.

Unemployment Compensation Fund — This fund accounts for the charges to other departments
and the expenses to provide unemployment compensation insurance.

Custodial Services Fund — This fund charges other departments on a square footage basis to
account for the custodial services and maintenance provided to all City-owned buildings.

Information Technology Fund — This fund accounts for charges to other departments based on
the number of workstations to cover the expenses for providing computer services, including
support, training and replacement.

Motor Equipment Fund — Rental charges of City-owned equipment to other City departments are
accounted for in this fund. The fund provides maintenance, insurance and replacement of all
City-owned vehicles.

Workers' Compensation Fund — Departments are charged a percentage of payroll based on
premiums established by our provider to account for pooled insurance expenses.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary Funds are established to account for assets held by the governmental unit in a trustee
capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, and other governmental
units and/or funds.

Pension Trust — Employees’ Retirement Fund — This fund is used to account for the
accumulation of resources for pension benefit payments to qualified general and public safety
employees. The Employees Retirement Fund reported end-of-the-year net assets held in trust
for pension and health care benefits of $181 million compared to the beginning amount of $152
million. As of December 31, 2010, the fund is 95.8% funded.

Pension Trust — Discretionary Fire Incentive Reserve Fund — This fund is used to account for
accumulation of resources for incentive payments to qualified volunteer firefighters.
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Retiree Health Care Trust Fund - The Retiree Health Care Trust Fund was established in fiscal
year 2006 to account for medical benefits provided to employees during retirement. This fund
will accumulate revenue until the reserves are depleted in the employee’s retirement fund. This
plan and trust is created under the authority of the Public Employee Health Care Fund
Investment Act, Public Act 149 of 1999.

Agency Fund — This fund is used to account for taxes collected on behalf of other governmental
units and contractors’ performance deposits.

Component Units

Component units, as defined by GASB No. 14, are so classified due to their relationship with the
primary government relative to financial accountability of the reporting agency.

Downtown Development Authority Fund — The Authority generates revenue from property value
increases within the district compared to the initial taxable value established in 1993. These
funds are used for the purpose of providing for the construction and financing of necessary
improvements to prevent further deterioration of the development area while preserving and
promoting economic growth.

Brownfield Redevelopment Authority — This fund was established in 2002 to account for projects
that will improve environmentally distressed areas within the City of Troy.

Local Development Financing Authority — This fund was established to capture tax increment
revenues in the Automation Alley Smart Park, to encourage local development, to prevent
conditions of unemployment and to promote economic growth. The purpose of the authority is
to provide for the construction and financing of public facilities within the City of Troy necessary
for the project.

Tax Rate Limitations

The City Charter provides tax rate limitations for general operations. In addition, the City of
Troy may levy taxes in excess of the Charter limitation for refuse collection and debt service.

Rate Per $1,000

Purpose Authority of Taxable Value
General Operating City Charter $8.10*
Refuse Collection Act 298, P.A. of Michigan 1917 as 3.00*
Amended,
Disposal Article IX, Section 56 of Michigan
Constitution
Debt Service City Charter Amount

Necessary for
debt payment

*The maximum permitted general operating and refuse collection and disposal per Headlee Amendment
of the Michigan Constitution for fiscal year 2010 was 8.1000 and 2.5522, respectively.
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OTHER
INFORMATION

Independent Audit

The City Charter and State statutes require an annual audit of all accounts of the City by
certified public accountants. The accounting firm of Rehmann Robson, was selected by the City
Council. The City received an “unqualified opinion” from Rehmann Robson, which is the best
opinion that an organization can receive on its financial statements. It indicates that the
auditor's examination has disclosed no conditions that cause them to believe that the financial
statements are not fairly stated in all material respects.

Additionally, during the current year an audit was performed in accordance with the
requirements of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 (P.L. 104456). The auditor’s reports
related to the single audit are issued as a part of this report.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Troy,
Michigan for its CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.

This was the fourteenth consecutive year that the City has achieved this prestigious award. In
order to be awarded a certificate of achievement, a government must publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized CAFR. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements.

A certificate of achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement
Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for

another certificate.

The City has also received the GFOA Award for Outstanding Achievement in Popular Annual
Financial Reporting (PAFR).

Acknowledgements

The timely preparation of the CAFR was made possible by the dedicated service of the entire
staff of the Finance Department. Each member of the department has our sincere appreciation
for the contributions made in preparation of this report.

Jo?ﬁ §zerlag,@iWager Thomas E. Dérling, Intefim Director of

Finance & Administration
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Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

City of Troy
Michigan

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2010

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.

www.troymi.gov

XV



This Page Intentionally Left Blank

www.troymi.gov



2010/11 ORGANIZATION CHART

Assistant to City

Manager

City Council

Manager Office
Coordinator

Police

Public Works

Streets/Drains

Fleet Maintenance

Water/Sewer

Refuse/Recycling

Building Operations

Park Maintenance

{ACH ance and
Administrative Services

Treasurer

Human Resources

Risk Management

Purchasing

Information

Assessing

Library/Museum

www.troymi.gov

Director of Economic
and Community
Development

Building Inspection

Engineering

Planning

Economic
Development

Community Affairs

Recreation

XVI



This Page Intentionally Left Blank

www.troymi.gov



PRINCIPAL
OFFICIALS

City Manager

City Attorney

Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration
Director of Economic and Community Development
City Assessor

City Clerk

City Engineer

City Treasurer

Community Affairs Director

Director of Building Operations
Financial Services Director

Fire Chief

Human Resources Director
Information Technology Director
Library/Museum Director

Parks and Recreation Director

Acting Planning Director

Police Chief

Public Works Director

Purchasing Director

Risk Manager

Superintendent of Fleet Maintenance
Superintendent of Streets and Drains
Superintendent of Water

www.troymi.gov

JOHN SZERLAG

LoRI GRIGG BLUHM
JOHN M. LAMERATO
MARK F. MILLER

LEGER A. LICARI

ToNnNI L. BARTHOLOMEW
STEVEN J. VANDETTE
SANDRA L. KASPEREK
CYNTHIA STEWART
STEVEN PALLOTTA
JAMES A. NASH
WILLIAM S. NELSON
PEGGY E. SEARS
GERTRUDE M. PARASKEVIN
CATHLEEN A. Russ
CAROL K. ANDERSON
BRENT SAVIDANT

GARY G. MAYER
TIMOTHY L. RICHNAK
SUSAN A. LEIRSTEIN
STEPHEN COOPERRIDER
SAMUEL LAMERATO
THOMAS ROSEWARNE
RICHARD W. SHEPLER

XVII



FUND ORGANIZATION CHART

Governmental Funds

Capital Projects*

Debt Service

Proposal A
Proposal B
Proposal C
General Debt Service

Special Revenue

Major Streets

Local Streets

Refuse

Community Development Block Grant
Budget Stabilization

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise

Water*

Sanitary Sewer*

Aquatic Center

Sylvan Glen Golf Course Fund
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Fund*
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

December 1, 2011

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Troy, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Troy, Michigan (the “City”), as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of Troy, Michigan, as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes
in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the budgetary comparison for
the general fund, for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 1, 2011, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis presented on pages 3-10 and the Schedules of
Funding Progress and Employer’s Contributions on pages 70-72 are not a required part of the
basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures,
which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement
and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining
and individual fund financial statements and schedules, and statistical tables as listed in the table
of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
presented for the purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and
Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and
is also not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund
financial statements and schedules and schedule of expenditures of federal awards have been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in
our opinion, are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical tables, as listed in the table of contents,
have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Relssanfeleo:



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

This section of the City of Troy’s annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the
City’s financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on June 30, 2011. Please read it in
conjunction with the transmittal letter and City’s financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

e The City’s combined total net assets are reported as $395.1 million for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2011, compared to $391.0 last fiscal year.

e In the City’s governmental activities, revenues generated $72.2 million, while expenses totaled
$71.3 million.

e In the City’s business-type activities, revenues generated $29.1 million, while expenses totaled
$25.9 million.

e The total cost of all of the City’s programs, including governmental activities and business-type
activities was $97.2 million, down $3.2 million from last fiscal year, this compares to a $4.3
million decrease last year.

e Total net assets increased $4.1 million. Note that this is not cash or spendable resources of
itself.

OVERVIEW OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The first two statements, the
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, provide information about the activities of
the City of Troy as a whole and present a longer-term view of the City’s finances. The remaining
statements, including governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds focus on how City
services were financed in the short term, as well as what remains for future spending. Fund
financial statements report the City of Troy's operations in more detail than the government-wide
financial statements.

The financial statements include notes that explain and provide more detailed data about some of
the information found in the financial statements. The statements are followed by a section of other
required supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the
financial statements.

In addition to these required elements, we have included a section with combining statements that
provide details about our nonmajor governmental, nonmajor business-type, internal service, and
fiduciary funds, each of which are added together and presented in single columns in the basic
financial statements.

www.troymi.gov 3



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

GOVERNMENT-WIDE
STATEMENTS

The government-wide statements report information about the City of Troy as a whole using
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net
assets includes all of the government'’s assets and liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and
expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or

paid.

The two government-wide statements report the change in the difference between the City’s assets
and liabilities. This change in net assets is an indicator of whether the City’s financial health is
improving or deteriorating. In order to assess the overall health of the City, you need to consider
additional non-financial factors such as changes in the City’s property tax base and the condition of
the City’s roads and other infrastructure.

The government-wide financial statements of the City of Troy are divided into two categories:

Governmental Activities — Most of the City’s basic services are included here, such as police, fire,
public works, parks and recreation, and general administration. Property taxes, state shared
revenue, and charges for services finance most of these activities.

Business-type Activities — The City charges fees to customers to help cover the cost of certain
services it provides. The City’s business-type activities include water, sanitary sewer, Aquatic
Center, and two public golf courses.

FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City’s most significant
funds, not the City as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of

specific sources of funding and spending for particular purposes.
The City of Troy has three types of funds:

Governmental Funds — Most of the City’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which
focus on how cash, and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash, flow in and
out. The funds also show the balances left at year-end that are available for spending.

The governmental fund statements focus on a short-term view rather than the long-term focus of
the government-wide statements, so additional information is provided after the governmental fund
statements that explain the relationship or differences between the fund and government-wide

statements.

www.troymi.gov 4



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

Proprietary Funds — Proprietary funds are used to report services where the City charges
Customers a fee for services rendered. Proprietary funds provide both long- and short-term
financial information. The two types of proprietary funds are enterprise and internal service funds:

e Enterprise funds and business-type activities are the same, but the fund statements provide
more detail and additional information such as cash flows.

e Internal Service funds are used to report activities that provide supplies and service for the
City’s other programs. Examples of internal service funds would be Motor Equipment and
Information Technology.

Fiduciary Funds — The City of Troy is trustee for its employee pension plans. The City is
responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended
purposes. All of the City’s fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net
assets and a statement of changes in fiduciary net assets. These activities are excluded from the
City’s government-wide financial statements because the City cannot use these assets to finance

operations.

THE CITY OF TROY
AS A WHOLE

The City’s combined total net assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 is $395.1 million.
Business-type activities comprise $162.7 million and governmental activities make up $232.4

million of the total net assets.

Combined unrestricted net assets, the part of net assets that can be used to finance day-to-day
operations, is reported as $83.5 million. $38.4 million is the amount of unrestricted net assets
reported for the City of Troy’s governmental activities while $45.1 is reported in the City’s business-

type activities.

The table on the following page shows the comparison of total assets, total liabilities, and total net
assets (in millions of dollars) in a condensed format as of June 30, 2011 to the prior year.

www.troymi.gov



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Assets:

Current Assets 68.3 7201 % 486 | $ 46.4 11691 % 118.4

Capital Assets 202.4 201.5 127.9 127.6 330.3 329.1
Total Assets 270.7 273.5| % 176.5 | $ 174.0 447.2 1 $ 447.5
Liabilities:

Long-tern Debt

Outstanding 32.5 365(9% 10.3|$% 10.7 428 % 47.2

Other Liabilities 5.8 6.0 3.5 3.3 9.3 9.3
Total Liabilities 38.3 425 | % 13.8 | $ 14.0 5211 $ 56.5
Net Assets:

Invested in

Capital Assets,

Net of Debt 174.6 1708 | $ 1176 | $ 116.9 29221 9% 287.7

Restricted 19.4 26.3 - - 19.4 26.3

Unrestricted 38.4 33.9 45.1 43.1 83.5 77.0
Total Net Assets 232.4 231.0| $ 162.7 | $ 160.0 395.1| % 391.0

Total assets decreased by $0.3 million during the year, made up of a decrease of $2.8 million in
governmental activities and an increase of $2.5 million in business type activities. The decrease in
governmental current assets was due primarily to the use of cash and investments to reduce debt

obligations and purchase of capital assets.

Total liabilities decreased by $4.4 million primarily due to the reduction in long-term debt through
annual debt payments.

Net assets show an increase in investments in capital assets net of debt of $4.5 million and
unrestricted net assets increased by $6.5 million. Restricted net assets decreased by $6.9 million.

www.troymi.gov



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

The following table shows the comparison of the change in net assets (in millions of dollars) as of
June 30, 2011 to the prior year, in a condensed format:

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Program Revenues:
Charges for Sernvices $ 151 9% 11.8 28.5 26.9 400 | $ 38.7
Operating Grants & Contributions 1.5 1.4 - - 1.5 1.1
Capital Grants & Contributions 6.9 8.6 0.2 0.3 i 8.9
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 46.0 50.7 - - 46.0 50.7
State-shared Revenues 5.6 5.6 - - 5.6 5.6
Interest Earnings 0.5 0.8 0.4 0.5 0.9 1.3
Other Revenue 0.2 1.4 - - 0.2 1.4
Total Revenues 72.2 80.0 29.1 27.7 101.3 107.7
Program Expenses:
General Government 10.1 10.5 - - 10.1 10.5
Public Safety 30.8 31.3 - - 30.8 31.3
Engineering & Public Senices 14.8 15.0 - - 14.8 15.0
Community & Economic Dev 1.0 1.5 - - 1.0 1.5
Sanitation 4.1 4.0 - - 4.1 4.0
Recreation and Culture 9.8 12.6 - - 9.8 12.6
Interest Expense 0.7 0.6 " - 0.7 0.6
Water - - 12.4 12.5 12.4 12.5
Sanitary Sewer - - 10.4 9.1 10.4 9.1
Golf Courses - - 2.5 2.7 2.5 2.7
Aquatic Center - - 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6
Total Expenses 71.3 75.5 25.9 24.9 97.2 100.4
Inc in Net Assets before Transfers 0.9 4.5 3.2 2.8 4.1 i
Transfers 0.5 0.6 (0.5) (0.6) - -
Increase in Net Assets 1.4 5.1 2.7 2.2 4.1 7.3
Net Assets - Beginning of Year 231.0 225.9 160.0 157.8 391.0 383.7
Net Assets - End of Year $ 2324 (% 231.0 162.7 160.0 | $ 395.1 | $ 391.0
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES

The City of Troy’s total governmental revenue is reported at $72.2 million, a decrease of $7.8
million from the prior year. The decrease is attributable primarily to a reduction in property taxes.

Expenses decreased by $4.2 million compared to last fiscal year. The net decrease of $4.2 million
is spread over several divisions, of which $2.8 million is attributable to recreation and cultural
activities.

During the year the City continued meeting the actuarial required contributions for the defined
benefit pension system and the discretionary fire incentive reserve fund as well as pre-funding
retiree healthcare benefits. This is important for the City because future taxpayers should not be
required to fund benefit payments that were earned in the past.

BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES

The City of Troy’s business-type activities consist of water, sanitary sewer, Aquatic Center, and golf
courses. Water and sanitary sewer services classified as Major Funds are provided to City
residents through the Detroit water system and sewerage treatment plants. Change in net assets
for business-type activities increased by $2.7 million. The Water and Sewer Fund increased by
$1.9 million and $1.4 million respectively. The City’s two golf courses recorded a net decrease in
net assets of $.6 million.

THE CITY OF TROY’S
FunDs

Analysis of the City of Troy’s major funds begins following the government-wide financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. The fund financial statements provide detailed
information about the most significant funds, not the City of Troy as a whole. Funds are created to
help manage money for specific purposes, as well as to show accountability for certain activities,
such as specific property tax millages and restricted receipts from outside sources.

The City’s General Fund balance increased by $1.9 million to a balance of $27.5 million. The
increase was attributable to a one time transfer of excess Brownfield Redevelopment Authority tax
increments and reduction in staff of on demand service departments and ten percent reduction in
pay through the use of furlough days, employee concessions and early retirement incentives for

several employee groups.

www.troymi.gov



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

Fund balance in the Capital Projects Fund decreased by $4.8 million due to the timing and
completion of various projects.

GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Over the course of the year, City Council amended the budget to take into account events during
the year. These amendments from the original budget were minimal for both revenues and
expenditures.

Overall actual revenues were in line with amended budget amounts showing a slight increase over
budget of $0.9 million or 1.8%. Expenses for the City were $4.5 million or 7.8% under amended
budget amounts due to a conservative spending policy, delays in filing vacant positions, staff
reductions, reduction in benefit levels for new hires and 10% wage reductions in the form of
furlough days, employee concessions and early retirement incentives for several employee groups.

CAPITAL ASSET AND
DEBT ADMINISTRATION

At the end of 2011, the City of Troy had $330.4 million invested in a broad range of capital assets
including land, buildings, police and fire equipment, water and sewer lines, roads, sidewalks, and
other infrastructure, net of debt. The increase in capital assets during the year was attributable to
the excess of additions in streets, drains and water/sewer systems over the recognition of

depreciation.

The City of Troy’s debt rating is excellent. The City maintains a AAA rating on unlimited tax general
obligation bonds by Standard and Poor’'s. The City of Troy’s bond indebtedness totaled $42.8
million at June 30, 2011, a decrease of $4.4 million from the prior year resulting from debt

retirement payments.

Additional information about the City’s capital assets and debt administration is presented in the
notes to financial statements.

www.troymi.gov



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

CURRENT EconOMIC
EVENTS

The City of Troy’s budget for 2012 calls for a tax rate of 9.49, a .09 mill increase from the current
year. The general operating total tax rate has remained the same or lower since July 1, 1996.
Property taxes make up approximately 65.5% of our General Fund budget. Because of the impact
of Proposal A, State of Michigan budget woes, and a decrease in taxable values due to the drop in
property values, the City of Troy budgeted to reduce its full-time work force by an additional 36
positions in 2011/12 through attrition and layoffs. The statewide tax reform act limits growth in
taxable value on any individual property to the lesser of inflation or five percent.

The electors of Troy passed a charter amendment on November 4, 2008 freezing the existing
operating rate unless voters approve an increase.

Because most properties decreased in market value due to utilizing a one-year sales study versus
two years, the mathematical result of this is that the total taxable value for the City of Troy will result
in a reduction of taxable value. With conservative budget forecasting of revenues and realistic
expenditure estimates, reduction of workforce, utilization of fund balance and employee
concessions, we have a balanced budget.

State shared revenue payments are expected to decrease by an additional $300,000 to $5.3
million. When comparing this annual amount to the amount we received five years ago, we are
receiving $1.5 million less. The State is still experiencing financial woes so we have adjusted our
revenue forecast to reflect the State’s economy, and the likelihood of future reductions.

The City purchases its water and sewer services from the City of Detroit. Historically, we have
passed along the full water and sewer rate increase or decrease to our customers. The City’s rate
structure enables us to provide water and sewer service to our citizens as well as pay for
operations, maintenance and improvements to the system.

The City still prides itself on having one of the lowest combined water and sewer rates of any
southeastern Michigan community.

CONTACTING THE CITY OF TROY’S
MANAGEMENT

This financial report is intended to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and investors with a
general overview of the City of Troy’s financial condition.

If you have questions about this report or need additional information, we welcome you to contact
the administrative offices at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Mi. 48084. Additional information
can be obtained at the City of Troy’s web site, www.troymi.gov.

www.troymi.gov
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011
Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 30,054,776 $ 37,365,836 $ 67,420,612 $ 10,465,039
Investments 27,070,812 5,482,095 32,552,907 -
Receivables (net) 6,317,518 8,643,486 14,961,004 91,945
Internal balances 3,438,608 (3,438,608) - -
Other assets 1,066,088 522,103 1,588,191 -
Postemployment benefits asset 281,188 - 281,188 -
Capital assets
Assets not being depreciated 43,442,773 16,519,655 59,962,428 -
Assets being depreciated, net 158,997,617 111,393,339 270,390,956 -
Total assets 270,669,380 176,487,906 447,157,286 10,556,984
Liabilities
Accounts payable 3,305,148 3,192,807 6,497,955 B
Accrued payroll 1,965,730 - 1,965,730 -
Accrued liabilities 262,340 242 805 505,145 165,365
Unearned revenue 186,793 86,721 273,514 -
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year 5,051,513 400,000 5,451,513 2,215,000
Due in more than one year 27,518,656 9,900,000 37,418,656 19,815,000
Total liabilities 38,290,180 13,822,333 52,112,513 22,195,365
Net assets
Invested in capital assets, net
of related debt 174,656,911 117,612,994 292,269,905 -
Restricted for
Debt service 2,586,721 - 2,586,721 -
Highways and streets 3,857,177 - 3.857.177 s
Capital projects 12,542,798 - 12,542,798 -
Perpetual care 222,655 - 222,655 -
Other purposes 83,897 - 83,897 -
Unrestricted (deficit) 38,429,041 45,052,579 83,481,620 (11,638,381)

Total net assets (deficit)

$ 232,379,200

$ 162,665,573

$ 395,044,773

$ (11,638,381)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges Grants and Grants and Net (Expense)
Functions / Programs Expenses for Services Contributions Contributions Revenue
Primary government
Governmental activities
General government $ 10,057,545 §$ 3,017,126 § (223) $ - § (7,040,642)
Public safety 30,776,101 2,912,838 225,018 62,351 (27,575,894)
Public works 14,812,707 1,696,240 - 6,721,702 (6,394,765)
Sanitation 4,110,330 4,860 - - (4,105,470)
Community and economic
development 1,030,929 - 665,515 89,922 (275,492)
Recreation and culture 9,865,320 3,850,470 584,640 21,677 (5,408,533)
Interest on long-term debt 665,356 - - - (665,356)
Total governmental activities 71,318,288 11,481,534 1,474,950 6,895,652 (51,466,152)
Business-type activities
Water 12,439,089 14,139,274 - 81,067 1,781,252
Sewer 10,400,332 11,917,175 - 140,494 1,657,337
Aquatic center 565,873 503,685 - - (62,188)
Sylvan Glen golf course 1,021,420 1,024,216 B - 2,796
Sanctuary Lake golf course 1,523,616 940,775 - < (582,841)
Total business-type activities 25,950,330 28,525,125 - 221,561 2,796,356
Total primary government $ 97,268,618 $40,006,659 $ 1,474,950 § 7,117,213  $(48,669,796)
Component units
Downtown development authority $ 2,187,039 § - % - 8 - § (2,187,039)
Local development financing authority 160,004 - - - (160,004)
Brownfield redevelopment authority 9,211 - - - (9,211)
Total component units $ 2356254 § - 8 - 8 - % (2,356,254)

continued...

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

13 s



CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (CONCLUDED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Changes in net assets
Net (expense) revenue

General revenues
Property taxes
Property taxes for sanitary purposes
Property taxes for economic development
Property taxes for capital projects
Property taxes for debt service
State shared revenue, unrestricted
Grants and contributions not
restricted to specific programs
Unrestricted investment earnings
Gain on sale of capital assets
Transfers - internal activities

Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net assets
Net assets (deficit), beginning of year

Net assets (deficit), end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

$ (51,466,152) $ 2,796,356 $ (48,669,796) § (2,356,254)
32,550,858 - 32,550,858 -
4,057,573 - 4,057,573 -

= < - 2,325,431

7,137,343 - 7,137,343 -
2,321,601 - 2,321,601 -
5,615,666 - 5,615,666 -
8,652 - 8,652 -

537,935 384,561 922,496 65,370
123,038 - 123,038 -
492,020 (492,020) - -
52,844,686 (107,459) 52,737,227 2,390,801
1,378,534 2,688,897 4,067,431 34,547
231,000,666 159,976,676 390,977,342 (11,672,928)

$ 232,379,200

$ 162,665,573

$ 395,044,773

$ (11,638,381)
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011
Other Total
Capital Governmental  Governmental
General Projects Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,384 $ 9,005,526 $ 6,019,020 $ 15,036,930
Investments 24,167,116 2,903,696 - 27,070,812
Receivables:
Accounts receivable (net) 847,726 1,592,275 - 2,440,001
Taxes-delinquent 257,709 - - 257,709
Special assessments - 267,162 - 267,162
Due from other funds 3,318,614 - - 3,318,614
Due from other governments 2,350,122 E 911,577 3,261,699
Inventory 255,019 - - 255,019
Prepaid expenditures 460,486 - - 460,486
Total assets $ 31,669,176 $ 13,768,659 $ 6,930,597 $ 52,368,432
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 1,784,424 $ 1,133,673 $ 180,147 $ 3,098,244
Accrued payroll 1,965,730 - - 1,965,730
Other liabilities 9,235 - - 9,235
Deferred revenue 444 632 92,188 - 536,820
Total liabilities 4,204,021 1,225,861 180,147 5,610,029
Fund balances
Nonspendable 4,034,119 - - 4,034,119
Restricted 1,508,257 6,381,438 5,666,250 13,555,945
Committed 3,610,131 6,161,360 1,084,200 10,855,691
Assigned 5,953,000 - - 5,953,000
Unassigned 12,359,648 - - 12,359,648
Total fund balances 27,465,155 12,542,798 6,750,450 46,758,403
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 31,669,176 $ 13,768,659 $ 6,930,597 $ 52,368,432

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCES ON THE BALANCE SHEET
FOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO NET ASSETS OF
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITES ON THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2011

Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 46,758,403

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the funds.

Add: capital assets not being depreciated 43,432,525
Add: capital assets being depreciated 354,626,469
Deduct: accumulated depreciation (198,747,937)

Contributions to Trust Funds in excess of actuarially required amounts create an
asset that can be applied to future required contributions in the statement of net
assets but are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Add: postemployment benefit asset 281,188

Because the focus of governmental funds is on short-term financing, some assets
will not be available to pay for current-period expenditures. Those assets (such as
certain receivables) are offset by deferred revenues in the governmental funds, and
thus are not included in fund balance.

Add: deferred revenues 350,027

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
equipment usage, public service department and retiree health care costs to
individual governmental funds. A portion of the assets and liabilities of the
internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of

Add: net assets of governmental activities accounted for in the internal service
funds. 14,542,491

Add: due from business-type activities for internal service fund activities 119,994

Certain liabilities, such as bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Deduct: accrued interest payable (253,106)

Deduct: bonds payable (27,783,479)

Deduct: claims incurred but not reported (947,375)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 232,379,200

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Revenues
Property taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Federal sources
State sources
Local sources
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment earnings
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Sanitation
Community development
Recreation and culture
Debt service
Principal
Interest and fees
Capital outlay

Total expenditures
Revenues (under) over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Issuance of debt
Payments to escrow agents
Premium on debt issuance
Transfers in
Transfers out
Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances, beginning of year (restated)

Fund balances, end of year

Other Total
Capital Governmental Governmental
General Projects Funds Funds

$ 32,550,858 $ 7,137,343 S 6,394,472 $ 46,082,673
1,259,748 - - 1,259,748
531,619 1,491,214 148,800 2,171,633
5,776,780 - 4,727,605 10,504,385
508,444 531,265 - 1,039,709
7,016,206 312,043 7,510 7,335,759
1,277,705 - - 1,277,705
225,715 144,482 60,702 430,899
1,683,054 62,846 221,175 1,967,075
50,830,129 9,679,193 11,560,264 72,069,586
8,172,962 59,829 - 8,232,791
29,899,440 - - 29,899,440
6,555,525 - - 6,555,525
- - 4,109,985 4,109,985

- - 148,800 148,800
9,067,491 - = 9,067,491
E 196,586 2,300,000 2,496,586

- 2,690 1,245,789 1,248,479

B 14,244,384 - 14,244,384
53,695,418 14,503,489 7,804,574 76,003,481
(2,865,289) (4,824,296) 3,755,690 (3,933,895)
- - 9,110,000 9,110,000
= - (9,919,004) (9,919,004)

- - 947,639 947,639
4,781,563 1,000,000 3,447,677 9,229,240
- (1,034,905) (7,737,220) (8,772,125)

- 61,373 - 61,373
4,781,563 26,468 (4,150,908) 657,123
1,916,274 (4,797,828) (395,218) (3,276,772)
25,548,881 17,340,626 7,145,668 50,035,175
$ 27,465,155 $ 12,542,798 $ 6,750,450 $ 46,758,403

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different
because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense.

Add: capital outlay

Deduct: depreciation expense

Pension contributions in excess of actuarially determined amounts are reported as
expenditures. However, these expenditures are not recognized until they are actuarially
required in the statement of activities.

Add: net difference in postemployment benefit assets

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are
not reported as revenues in the funds, but rather are deferred to the following fiscal year.

Deduct: net difference in deferred revenue

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds in the period
issued, but issuing bonds increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.

Add: principal payments on long-term liabilities
Deduct: proceeds from bond issuance for refunding
Add: proceeds transferred to bond agent for refunding

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain equipment,
public service department and employee insurance costs to individual governmental funds.
The net revenue attributable to those funds are reported with governmental activities.

Add: net gain from governmental activities in the internal service funds

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in the funds.

Add: decrease in accrued interest expense
Deduct: increase in accrued claims payable

Change in net assets of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(3,276,772)

14,244,383
(12,718,437)

281,188

(94,858)

2,496,586
(9,110,000)
9,919,004

22,332

(364,516)
(20,376)

1,378,534




CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Property taxes $ 32,622,500 $ 32,622,500 $ 32,550,858 $ (71,642)
Licenses and permits 1,080,000 1,080,000 1,259,748 179,748
Intergovernmental
Federal sources 12,000 112,000 531,619 419,619
State sources 5,248,100 5,248,100 5,776,780 528,680
Local sources 541,560 541,560 508,444 (33,116)
Charges for services 7,158,250 7,158,250 7,016,206 (142,044)
Fines and forfeitures 1,212,000 1,241,270 1,277,705 36,435
Investment earnings 305,000 255,000 225,715 (29,285)
Other 1,641,840 1,654,060 1,683,054 28,994
Total revenues 49,821,250 49,912,740 50,830,129 917,389
Expenditures
General government
Council and executive administration 3,548,978 3,548,977 3,199,444 349,533
Finance 2,825,836 3,175,836 3,064,514 111,322
Other 1,882,140 1,979,201 1,909,004 70,197
Total general government 8,256,954 8,704,014 8,172,962 531,052
Public safety
Police 27,008,140 26,899,630 24,718,988 2,180,642
Fire 4,238,338 4,338,338 4,038,500 299,838
Building inspection 962,513 965,453 1,141,952 (176,499)
Total public safety 32,208,991 32,203,421 29,899,440 2,303,981
Public works
Roads and streets 5,376,569 5,376,569 4,799,035 577,534
Engineering 1,951,997 1,951,997 1,756,490 195,507
Total public works 7,328,566 7,328,566 6,555,525 773,041
Culture and recreation
Parks and recreation 7,524,747 7,524,747 6,779,136 745,611
Library and museum 2,478,241 2,478,241 2,288,355 189,886
Total culture and recreation 10,002,988 10,002,988 9,067,491 935,497
Total expenditures 57,797,500 58,238,990 53,695,418 4,543,572
Revenues over (under) expenditures (7,976,250) (8,326,250) (2,865,289) 5,460,961
Other financing sources
Transfers in 7,976,250 8,326,250 4,781,563 (3,544,687)
Net change in fund balances (0) (0) 1,916,274 1,916,274
Fund balance, beginning of year, restated 25,548,881 25,548,881 25,548,881 -
Fund balance, end of year § 25,548,881 $ 25,548,881 $ 27,465,155 $ 1,916,274

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Interest receivable

Accounts receivable
Billed
Unbilled

Due from other funds

Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Contracts receivable
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated
net of accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Accrued liabilities
Compensated absences

Unearned revenue
Current portion of bonds payable

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Compensated absences
Bonds payable

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets
Investment in capital assets,
net of related debt

Unrestricted
Total net assets (deficit)

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011
Governmental
Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities
danctuary
Lake Nonmajor
Sanitary Golf Enterprise Internal
Water Sewer Course Funds Total Service Funds
$ 9,538,080 § 26,021,477 § - % 1,806,270 § 37,365,836 § 15,017,846
5,482,095 - - - 5,482,095 -
1,564 4,336 - - 5,900
2,220,119 7,666 257 16,597 2,244,639 90,947
3,148319 2,707,145 - - 5,855,464 -
# = - 1,139,845 1,139,845 -
387,055 50,692 31,667 25,536 494,950 350,583
- - 13,262 13,891 27,153 -
20,777,241 28,791,316 45,186 3,002,139 52,615,882 15,459,376
117,618 419,865 - - 537,483 -
8,810,574 3,601,066 2,213,463 1,894,552 16,519,655 10,248
68,633,672 32,747,959 7,794,749 2,216,959 111,393,339 3,119,085
77,444,246 36,349,025 10,008,212 4,111,511 127,912,994 3,129,333
77,561,864 36,768,890 10,008,212 4,111,511 128,450,477 3,129,333
98,339,105 65,560,206 10,053,398 7,113,650 181,066,359 18,588,709
1,486,004 1,531,239 92,737 82,827 3,192,807 206,904
- - 4,134,127 324,332 4,458,459 -
9,459 - 104,554 128,792 242,805 -
- - - - - 2,025,941
86,721 - - - 86,721 -
- - 400,000 - 400,000 -
1,582,184 1,531,239 4,731,418 535,951 8,380,792 2,232,845
- - - - - 1,813,373
- 9,900,000 - 9,900,000 -
- - 9,900,000 - 9,900,000 1,813,373
1,582,184 1,531,239 14,631,418 535,951 18,280,792 4,046,218
77,444,246 36,349,025 (291,788) 4,111,511 117,612,994 3,129,333
19,312,675 27,679,942 (4,286,232) 2,466,188 45,172,573 11,413,158
$ 96,756,921 § 64,028,967 $  (4,578,020) § 6,577,699 162,785,567 § 14,542,491

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal
service fund activities related to enterprise funds

Net assets of business type activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

(119,994)

$ 162,665,573
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Operating revenues
Charges for services
Rental

Golf course
Restaurant
Hydrant
Building
Equipment

Tap and connections fees

Penalties
Other services

Other services to city funds

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses

Cost of sales and services
General and administrative

Operations
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Investment earnings
Interest expense

Gain on sale of capital assets
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before contributions

and transfers

Developer contributions
Transfers in
Transfers out

Change in net assets

Net assets (deficit), beginning of year

Net assets (deficit), end of year

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal
service fund actvities related to enterprise funds

Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities
Sanctuary Nonmajor
Sanitary Lake Golf Enterprise Internal
Water Sewer Course Funds Total Service Funds
$ 13,517,973 § 11917,175 § 895932 § 1,128,613 § 27,459,693 § 7,025,106
- - 38,558 183,183 221,741 -
- - 6,285 87,720 94,005 <
2,000 - - - 2,000 -
- - - - - 152,708
- - - - E 2,924,654
183,101 - - - 183,101 -
417,244 - - - 417,244 -
18,956 - - 128,385 147,341 -
- - - - 686,745
14,139,274 11,917,175 940,775 1,527,901 28,525,125 10,789,213
7,302,189 7,962,199 - - 15,264,388 7,038,642
826,828 581,257 - - 1,408,085 736,735
2,258,254 624,054 726,640 1,277,914 4,886,862 2,300,172
2,022,429 1,217,991 297,642 309,687 3,847,749 938,850
12,409,700 10,385,501 1,024,282 1,587,601 25,407,084 11,014,399
1,729,574 1,531,674 (83,507) (59,700) 3,118,041 (225,186)
164,631 208,430 - 11,500 384,561 107,036
L = (499,334) - (499,334) =
- - - - - 61,665
164,631 208,430 (499,334) 11,500 (114,773) 168,701
1,894,205 1,740,104 (582,841) (48,200) 3,003,268 (56,485)
81,067 140,494 - - 221,561 -
- - - - - 34,905
- (492,020) - - (492,020) -
1,975,272 1,388,578 (582,841) (48,200) 2,732,809 (21,580)
94,781,649 62,640,389 (3,995,179) 6,625,899 14,564,071
$ 96,756,921 $ 64,028,967 § (4,578,020) § 6,577,699 § 14,542,491
(43,912)

Change in net assets of business-type activities

S 2688897

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities
Sanctuary Nonmajor
Sanitary Lake Golf Enterprise Internal
Water Sewer Course Funds Total Service Funds
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers and others $ 13,760,813  § 11,630,114 § 1,585,139 § 1,528,305 § 28,504,371 $ -
Cash received from interfund services - - - - - 10,789,965
Cash payments to employees (1,745,154) (648.427) (297,256) (527,689) (3,218,526) (8,695.,077)
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (8,751,555) (7.712,842) (404,050) (725,254) (17,593,701) (2,526.444)
Cash payments for interfund services (360,130) {176,462} (9.,999) (35,007) (581,598) 8
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 2,903,974 3,092,383 873,834 240,355 7,110,546 (431,556)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Transfers from other funds ] - " " - 34,905
Transfers to other funds - (492,020) - - (492,020) -
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities - (492,020) - - (492,020) 34,905
Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities
Purchase of capital assets (3,239.422) (584.688) - (85,152) (3,909,262) (353,542)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - - L - 61,665
Bond principal payments - - (400,000) - (400,000) -
Bond note interest payments - - (499.,334) - (499,334) 5
Net cash used by capital and related
financing activities (3,239,422) (584,688) (899,334) (85,152) (4,808,596) (291,877)
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of investmenis 887,482 6,073,459 - 420,780 7,381,721 4,076,210
Purchases of investments (2.675,062) - - - (2,675,062) -
Investment earnings 165,090 209,412 - 11,578 386,080 73,739
Net cash provided by investing activities (1,622.490) 6,282,871 - 432,358 5,092,739 4,149,949
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,957,938) 8,298,546 (25,500) 587,561 6,902,669 3,461,421
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 11,496,027 17,722,931 25,500 1,218,709 30,463,167 11,556,425
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 9,538,089 § 26,021,477 § - % 1,806,270 $ 37,365,836 § 15,017,846

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONCLUDED)

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Reconciliation of operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by operating activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid items
Contracts receivable
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Accrued liabilities
Unearned revenue

Net cash provided by operating activities

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities
Contributions of capital assets

Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities
Nonmajor
Sanctuary Business-
Sanitary Lake Golf Type Internal
Water Sewer Course Activities Total Service Funds
$ 1,729,574 § 1,531,674 § (83,507) $ (59.700) § 3,118,041 $  (225,186)
2,022,429 1,217,991 297,642 309,687 3,847,749 938,850
(410,054) (311,452) 15,903 404 (705,199) 752
155,242 (35,066) (12,119) (13,716) 94,341 (37,160)
- - (13,262) (13,891) (27,153) -
19,749 24,391 - - 44,140 -
(626,544) 664,845 (21,322) (58,997) (42,018) (2,505)
- - 628,461 (52,224) 576,237 -
1,734 - 62,038 128,792 192,564 (1,106,307)
11,844 - - - 11,844 -
§ 2903974 § 3,092,383 § 873,834 § 240,355 § 7,110,546 § (431,556)
$ 81,067 § 140,494  § - 3 - 5 221,561 8§ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest receivable
Taxes receivable
Investments
U.S. Government securities
Corporate bonds
Corporate equities, preferred
Corporate equities, common
Mutual funds
Municipal bonds

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Performance deposits

Total liabilities

Net assets

Held in trust for pension benefits

Held in trust for postemployment
healthcare benefits

Total net assets

Pension
Trusts Agency
8,022,408 $ 1,787,506
203,556 -
- 945,910
15,483,604 -
16,458,682 -
1,932,390 =
104,354,242 -
61,692,312 -
3,241,336 -
211,388,530 $ 2,733,416
22,940 $ 36,020
E 2,697,396
22,940 $2,733,416
152,332,621
59,032,969

$ 211,365,590

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Additions
Contributions
Employer contributions
Employee contributions

Total contributions

Investment income
Interest
Dividends
Net adjustment in fair value of investments

Total investment income
Total additions

Deductions
Benefits
Administrative expenses

Total deductions
Net increase in plan net assets

Net assets held in trust, beginning of year for
Pension benefits
Postemployment healthcare benefits

Total net assets held in trust, beginning of year

Net assets held in trust, end of year for
Pension benefits
Postemployment healthcare benefits

Total net assets held in trust, end of year

Pension
Trusts

$ 6,903,705

1,285,812

8,189,517

2,030,935
3,115,468

36,359,811
41,506,214

49,695,731

11,960,883
121,948

12,082,831

37,612,900

119,011,331

54,741,359

173,752,690

152,332,621

59,032,969

S 211365590

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011
Loecal
Downtown Development Brownfield
Development Financing  Redevelopment
Authority Authority Authority Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,419,831 $§ 255,139 $ 790,069 $ 10,465,039
Receivables
Taxes receivable 91,945 - - 91,945
Total assets 9,511,776 255,139 790,069 10,556,984
Liabilities
Interest payable 165,365 - - 165,365
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year 2,215,000 - - 2,215,000
Due after one year 19,815,000 - - 19,815,000
Total liabilities 22,195,365 - - 22,195,365
Net assets (deficit)
Unrestricted (12,683,589) 255,139 790,069 (11,638,381)
Total net assets (deficit) $ (12,683,589) $ 255,139 $ 790,069 $ (11,638,381)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Local
Downtown Development Brownfield
Development Financing  Redevelopment
Authority Authority Authority Total
Revenues
Property taxes § 2,124,678 § 196,186 $ 4,567 $ 2325431
Investment earnings 56,838 2,665 5,867 65,370
Total revenues 2,181,516 198,851 10,434 2,390,801
Expenses
Economic development 1,128,968 160,004 0,211 1,298,183
Interest 1,058,071 - - 1,058,071
Total expenses 2,187,039 160,004 9,211 2,356,254
Change in net assets (5,523) 38,847 1,223 34,547
Net assets (deficit),
beginning of year (12,678,066) 216,292 788,846 (11,672,928)
Net assets (deficit), end of year $ (12,683,589) $ 255,139 $ 790,069 $ (11,638,381)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the City of Troy, Michigan have been prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The following
is a summary of the significant accounting policies:

Reporting Entity

The City of Troy, Michigan was incorporated in 1955, and was formerly known as Troy Township
since it was organized in 1821. The City is governed by an elected mayor and six-member

council.

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the
City of Troy and its component units, entities for which the government is considered to be

financially accountable.

Component Units

Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are in substance, part of the
government's operations and so data from these units are combined with data of the primary
government. Discretely presented component units are also legally separate entities, but are not in
substance part of the government operation. The City of Troy has three component units, the
Downtown Development Authority, Brownfield Redevelopment Authority and the Local
Development Financing Authority, which meet the criteria for discretely presented component
units. The Authorities are also reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial
statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the City. Financial statements for each
of the individual component units are included in the supplemental information section as listed in
the table of contents of this report. Separately issued audited financial statements are not available.

The purpose of the Downtown Development Authority is to issue bonds and use tax increment
financing in the accomplishment of specific Downtown Development improvements to City-
owned facilities and infrastructure, which are contained in the locally adopted development plan.
The Downtown Development Authority may participate in projects for private development as
long as it is for a public purpose. The Authority’s governing body, which consists of thirteen
individuals, is selected by the City Council. In addition, the City Council sets the annual budget.

The purpose of the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority is to provide assistance for the
redevelopment of abandoned, idled, or under-utilized industrial or commercial properties, which
are complicated by real or perceived environmental contamination. The Authority’s governing
body, which consists of seven individuals, is selected by the City Council. In addition, the City
Council sets the annual budget for the Authority.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

The Local Development Financing Authority is a multi-jurisdictional authority that was
established to encourage local development in order to prevent conditions of unemployment and
to promote economic growth. The Authority’s governing body, which consists of five individuals,
is selected by the City Council. In addition, the City Council sets the annual budget.

Included within the reporting entity is the Troy Municipal Building Authority. The City feels that
this authority meets the minimum requirements to be considered a blended component unit. The
governing body of this authority is appointed by City Council. Its’ budget and any bond issuance
authorizations also are approved by the City Council and the legal liability for any general
obligation debt remains with the City. There have been no assets, liabilities, equity (beginning or
ending) or financial transactions during the year ended June 30™. Accordingly, this blended
component unit is not represented for financial reporting purposes.

The purpose of the Troy Municipal Building Authority is to issue bonds for City-owned facilities
and infrastructure, which are limited tax full faith and credit general obligations of the City.

Basis of Presentation - Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities are prepared using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains,
losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are
recognized when the exchange takes place. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and
liabilities resulting from non-exchange transactions are recognized in accordance with the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 33.

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the City as a
whole. The statements include all funds of the primary government and its component units,
except for its fiduciary funds. Those funds are reported in the statements of fiduciary net assets
and changes in fiduciary net assets.

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities are presented to distinguish between
governmental and business-type activities of the City. Governmental activities are financed
through taxes, intergovernmental revenues and other non-exchange revenues. These activities are
reported in governmental and internal service funds. Business-type activities are financed by fees
charged to external parties for goods or services. These activities are reported in the City's
enterprise funds.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges
provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.

Capital assets are reported in the government-wide statements at historical cost. Capital assets
include land, improvements to land, buildings, building improvements, vehicles, machinery,
equipment, library collection, infrastructure and all other tangible or intangible assets that are used
in operations and have initial useful lives beyond a single reporting period. Infrastructure assets
are long-lived capital assets that normally can be preserved for a significantly greater number of
years than most capital assets.

Capital assets that are being depreciated are reported net of accumulated depreciation in the
statement of net assets. Capital assets not being depreciated, such as land and construction in

progress, are reported separately.

Capital assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation expense is reported
in the statement of activities by allocating the net cost over the estimated useful life of the asset.
Assets are depreciated on an individual basis for equipment and buildings. Roads are depreciated
as a class with each class containing items based on their date of construction or reconstruction.
Sidewalks are depreciated by class with each class containing items based on the year of
construction.

Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of
self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and
expenditures, or expenses, as appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and accounted
for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by
which spending activities are controlled.

As a general rule the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other
charges between the government's water and sewer function and various other functions of the
government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues
reported for the various functions concerned.
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Governmental Funds
The City reports the following major and nonmajor governmental funds:
Major Funds

General Fund

The general fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Capital Projects Fund

The capital projects fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary
funds).

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other
than major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Debt Service Funds

Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment
of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

Permanent Funds

Permanent funds are used to account for the resources that are legally restricted to the extent
that only earnings, and not principal, may be used for the benefit of the government or its
citizenry. The City has one permanent fund for cemetery perpetual care.

In addition, the City reports the following fund types:

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The
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principal operating revenues of the water and sewer funds, Aquatic Center, golf course funds and
the City's internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating
expenses for the enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and service,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. Proprietary funds
focus on limitations on the use of net assets, rather than on the source of those assets.

The following proprietary funds are reported:

Enterprise Funds

Enterprise Funds are used to account for City operations which are similar to those often found
in the private sector, where the determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound

financial administration.

Internal Service Funds

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by
one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City or other governments,
on a cost-reimbursement basis.

The City operates six internal service funds. The unemployment and worker’s compensation
funds account for insurance costs provided to and charged to other departments. The
compensated absences fund accounts for the accrual of sick and vacation by all departments.
The information technology fund provides computer services, training and equipment to all
departments on a cost reimbursement basis. The motor equipment fund rents vehicles and
equipment to departments on a cost reimbursement basis. The custodial services fund
provides services to all funds on a cost reimbursement basis.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

Water Fund

The water fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City's water supply
system, capital additions and improvements.

Sanitary Sewer Fund

The sanitary sewer fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City's sewage
disposal system, capital additions and improvements.
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Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Fund

The Sanctuary Lake golf course fund accounts for the operations of the new 18-hole links
style course with practice facility.

Fiduciary Funds

Trust and Agency Funds

Trust and agency funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or
as an agent for individuals, private organizations, and other governments. These include
pension trust funds, a retiree health care trust fund and an agency fund. Pension and retiree
health care trust funds are accounted for in essentially the same manner as proprietary funds,
since capital maintenance is critical. The pension trust funds account for the activities of the
general employees and volunteer fireman retirement systems, which accumulate resources for
pension benefits to qualified employees and volunteers during retirement. The agency fund is
custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and does not involve measurement of results of
operations. Agency fund activity includes tax collections for other taxing jurisdictions for
which the City collects taxes and contractors performance deposits.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the
accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the
measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

All governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are recognized
when they become measurable and available.

Revenues are generally considered available when they are received in cash (unless legally
restricted to some future period) or when earned and expected to be collected soon enough after
year end to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City generally considers
revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
The exception to this is state shared revenues and expenditure driven grants in which revenues are
recognized if received within 90 days and one year of the end of the fiscal period, respectively.
Significant revenues susceptible to accrual include reimbursement grants, state shared revenues

and charges for services.

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the
related fund liability is incurred provided the liability normally would be liquidated with
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expendable available financial resources. The major exception to this general rule is principal and
interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due.

Certain indirect expenditures are included in the program expense reported for individual
functions and activities.

All governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or "current financial resources"
measurement focus. This means that generally only current assets and current liabilities are
included on their balance sheets. Their reported fund balance (net current assets) is considered a
measure of "available spendable resources". Governmental fund operating statements present
increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financial
uses) in net current assets. Accordingly, they are said to present a summary of sources and uses of

"available spendable resources" during a period.

All proprietary funds, pension and retiree health care trust funds and agency funds are accounted
for using the accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are recognized when they are earned,
and their expenses are recognized when they are incurred. Unbilled water and sewer fund utility
service receivables are recorded at year-end.

All proprietary funds and the pension and retiree health care trust funds are accounted for on a
cost of services or "economic resources" measurement focus. This means that all assets and all
liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activity are included on their
statements of net assets. Proprietary fund type operating statements present increases (revenues)
and decreases (expenses) in net total assets.

Budget Information

The City is legally subject to the budgetary control requirements of the State of Michigan P.A.
621 of 1978 (the Uniform Budgeting Act). The following is a summary of the requirements of
this Act according to the State Treasurer's "Bulletin for Audits of Local Units of Government in
Michigan" dated April 1984:

1. Budgets must be adopted for the general fund and special revenue funds.

2. The budgets must be balanced.

3. The budgets must be amended when necessary.

4. Public hearings must be held before budget adoptions.

5. Expenditures cannot exceed budget appropriations.
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6. Expenditures must be authorized by a budget before being incurred.

The City adopts its budget by function, which is in accordance with the State's legal requirement
and is the level of classification detail at which expenditures may not legally exceed

appropriations.

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements.

1. On or before the third Monday in April, the City Manager submits to the City Council a
proposed budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1%. The operating
budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

2. A public hearing on the budget is held before its final adoption.

3. As provided for by the City Charter, on or before the third Monday in May, the budget is
legally adopted and by resolution designates the sum to be raised by taxation.

4. The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within budgetary functions;
however, any revisions that alter the total expenditure of any budgetary function must be
approved by the City Council.

Budget amounts of the revenues and expenditures presented for the governmental funds are a
summarization of the budgeted amounts as originally adopted or as amended by the City Council.
Individual amendments were not material in relation to the original appropriations that were
adopted, for the general and special revenue funds. Budget appropriations lapse at year end.
During the current year, the budget was amended in a legally permissible manner. Budgets have
been prepared on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

Encumbrance Accounting

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services.
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation is
utilized in the capital projects fund. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as
restricted fund balances since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.
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Cash and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term investments
with a maturity date within three months of the date acquired by the City.

The City is authorized by Michigan Public Act 20 of 1943 (as amended) to invest surplus monies
(of non-pension funds) in U.S. bonds and notes, domestic certificates of deposit, certain
commercial paper, U.S. government repurchase agreements, bankers acceptances, mutual funds
and investment pools that are composed of authorized investment vehicles.

The pension and retiree health care trust funds are authorized by Michigan Public Act 485 of 1996
and 149 of 1999 to invest in certain reverse repurchase agreements, real estate leased to public
agencies, stocks, diversified investment companies, annuity investment contracts, mortgages,
certain state and local government obligations, and certain other specified investment vehicles.

Investments are stated at fair value.

Inventory

Inventory is stated at cost determined on a first-in, first-out basis which approximates market
value. Inventories in the governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when the inventory
item is consumed. Inventories are equally offset by a nonspendable fund balance designation
which indicates that such amounts do not constitute "available spendable resources".

Prepaid Items

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2011, are
recorded as prepaid items.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, buildings, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activities column in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by
the government as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated
useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical
cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market
value at the date of donation.

Infrastructure acquired prior to fiscal years ended after June 30, 1980 is not reported in capital
assets.
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Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Estimated

Assets Classification Useful Life
Buildings 50 years

Water and sewer transmission and

distribution system 50 years
Service connections 20 years
Infrastructure 20 - 25 years
Land improvements 10 years
Building improvements 20 years
Golf course equipment 3 - 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 - 10 years
Vehicles and miscellaneous equipment 2 - 20 years

Accrued Vacation and Other Compensated Absences

The City maintains an internal service fund to account for the accumulation of resources for, and
the payment of, vacation, compensatory time, holiday and sick pay. Earned but unpaid vacation
pay is fully accrued in the compensated absences fund, as it is due during the fiscal year
subsequent to the statement of net assets date.

The City charges departments incurring payroll costs for vacation pay benefits as they are earned
on a percent of payroll basis and transfers related proceeds into the compensated absences fund to
pay for eventual benefits to employees. Accumulated unpaid vacation pay due to the employees
of the City at June 30, 2011, was $1,110,794.

All other compensated absences which are currently due are also accrued in the compensated
absences fund since it has been earned by the employee as of the statement of net assets date. The
compensated absences fund also includes compensatory holiday and sick pay.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or proprietary fund-type statement of
net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized
over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of
material bond premium or discount. Material bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges
and amortized over the term of the related debt.
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In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs during the current period. The face amount of debt
issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as
other financing sources while discounts and issuance costs are reported as debt service
expenditures.

Fund Equity

Governmental funds report nonspendable fund balance for amounts that cannot be spent because
they are either (a) not in spendable form (i.e. inventory or prepaid expenditures) or (b) legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact (i.e. corpus of permanent funds). Restricted fund
balance is reported when externally imposed constraints are placed on the use of resources by
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments. Committed fund balance is
reported for amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed
by formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-making authority, the City Council.
A formal resolution of the City Council is required to establish, modify, or rescind a fund balance
commitment. The City reports assigned fund balance for amounts that are constrained by the
government’s infent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed.
Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund.

When the government incurs expenditures for purposes for which various fund balance
classifications can be used, it is the government’s policy to use restricted fund balance first, then
committed fund balance, assigned fund balance, and finally unassigned fund balance.

The City has established a policy to maintain a minimum unassigned fund balance for the General
Fund at a level of 15% of annual expenditures. This is to provide sufficient cash flow for City
operations and minimize the potential for short term tax anticipation borrowing. The City has not
currently established a policy to reinstate unassigned fund balance should the amount fall below

target levels.
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Note 2 -

Note 3 -

Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

State Construction Code Act

The City oversees building construction, in accordance with the State Construction Code Act,
including inspection of building construction and renovation to ensure compliance with the
building codes. The City charges fees for these services. The law requires that collection of these
fees be used only for construction code costs, including an allocation of estimated overhead costs.

A summary of the current year activity and the cumulative shortfall generated since July 1, 2001 is
as follows:

Shortfall at July 1, 2010 $ (6,659,862)
Current year building permit revenue $1.192.329

Related expenses:

Direct costs 1,147,855
Estimated indirect costs 91,828
Total construction code expenses 1,239,683
Net shortfall for the year ended June 30, 2011 (47.354)
Cumulative shortfall at June 30, 2011 $ (6,707,216)

Deposits and Investments

Statutory Authority

State statutes authorize the City to make limited investments authorized by Michigan Compiled
Laws Section 129.91 (Public Act 20 of 1943, as amended), and may invest in the following:

a, Bonds, securities, other obligations and repurchase agreements of the United States, or
an agency or instrumentality of the United States. Repurchase agreements consisting of
these same instruments.

b. Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts or depository receipts of a
qualified financial institution.

c. Commercial paper rated at the time of purchase within the two highest classifications
established by not less than two standard rating services and that matures not more
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than 270 days after the date of purchase. Not more than fifty percent of any fund may
be invested in commercial paper at any time.

d. Bankers acceptances of United States banks.

e. Obligations of the State of Michigan or any of its political subdivisions that, at the time
of purchase are rated as investment grade by at least one standard rating service.

f. Mutual funds registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 with the authority
to purchase only investment vehicles that are legal for direct investment by a public
corporation.

g. External investment pools as authorized by Public Act 20 as amended throug12/31/97.

The investment policy adopted by the City Council in accordance with Public Act 20 of 1943, as
amended authorizes investments in all of the above investments with the following provision:
Authorized Depositories shall be designated by the City of Troy City Council.

The City of Troy’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits,
and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition. All investments are recorded at fair value.

The pension and retiree health care trust funds are also authorized to invest in stocks, annuity
investment contracts, mutual funds, commercial paper, corporate bonds, instrumentalities of the
United States, real estate (limited to five percent of the trust funds assets), certain state and local
government obligations, and certain other specified investment vehicles.

Investment and Deposit Risk

Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of investments will decrease as a result
of a rise in interest rates. State law limits the allowable investments and the maturities of some of the
allowable investments. The City of Troy’s investment policy does not have specific limits in excess
of state law on investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising
from increasing interest rates.
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At year end, the average maturities of debt security investments are as follows:

Investment

Government-wide
US Government or agency bond/note
Municipal bonds

Employees’ Retirement System
US Government or agency bond/note
Municipal bonds
Corporate bonds

Discretionary Fire Incentive Reserve
US Government or agency bond/note

Retiree Health Care Trust Fund
Mutual funds only

$22,020,381
5,021,639

10,752,503
3,241,336
16,458,682

4,572,123

N/A

Fair Value

Average Maturity

Over 10 years
Over 10 years

1,095 days
350 days
1,059 days

912 days

N/A

Credit Risk. State law limits investments to specific government securities, certificates of deposits
and bank accounts with qualified financial institutions, commercial paper with specific maximum
maturities and ratings when purchased, bankers acceptances of specific financial institutions, qualified
mutual funds and qualified external investment pools. The City of Troy investment policy does not
have specific limits in excess of state law on investment credit risk. As of year-end, the credit quality

ratings of debt securities are as follows:

AAA AA to AA- A to A- BBB to BBB- BB to BB- B to B- Not Rated Total

Government-wide

US Government or agency $ 22,020,381 $ - 3 - 3 - 8 b - 8 - § 22,020,381

Municipal bonds 3,476,639 795,000 - 750,000 5,021,639
Employees' Retirement System

US Government or agency 10,752,503 - - - - - 10,752,503

Municipal bonds - 1,726,806 - 202,161 - - 1,222,369 3,241,336

Corporate bonds - 502,105 9,921,035 2,779,583 229,946 2,581,026 444 987 16,458,682
Discretionary Fire Incentive Reserve

US Government or agency 4,572,123 - - - - - 4,572,123
Total $ 37,345,007 § 5,705,550 _$10,716,035 § 3,071,744 $ 229,946 _§ 2,581,026 _§ 2!41','256 $ 62,066,664
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Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure,
the City of Troy deposits may not be returned. State law does not require and the City’s investment
policy does not directly address a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. At year end, $50,447,347 of
the City of Troy’s bank deposits (certificates of deposit, checking, and cash) of $53,850,923 was
exposed to custodial credit risk because they were uninsured and uncollateralized. The City believes
that due to the dollar amounts of cash deposits and the limits of FDIC insurance, it is impractical to
insure all deposits. As a result, the City evaluates each financial institution with which it deposits
funds and assesses the level of risk of each institution; only those institutions with an acceptable

estimated risk level are used as depositories.

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the
event of the failure of the counterparty, the City of Troy will not be able to recover the value of its
investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. State law does not
require and the City of Troy does not have a policy for investment custodial credit risk. At year end
none of the City’s investments were subject to custodial credit risk due to one of the following:

Investments were part of an insured pool
Investments were book-entry only in the name of the City and were fully insured

Investments were part of a mutual fund
Investments were held by an agent in the City’s name

Concentration of Credit Risk. In compliance with State law, the City’s investment policy limits
investments to the top two ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations.
Through its investment policy, the City places a five percent limit on the amount the City may invest
in any one issuer.
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Note 4 - Receivables

Receivables, which include amounts due from other governments at June 30, 2011, are

summarized as follows:

Primary Government
Governmental Activities

Delinquent personal property taxes (net) $ 257,709
Billed accounts receivable 2,265,635
Special assessments 267,162
Due from Oakland County 144,392
Due fiom State of Michigan 2,573,632
Due from U.S. Government 394,875
Other receivables 414,113
Total governmental activities 6,317,518
Business-Type Activities
Billed accounts receivable 2,244,639
Unbilled accounts receivable 5,855,464
Contracts receivable 537,483
Other receivables 15,394
Total business-type activities 8,652,980

Total primary government

Component Units
Downtown Development Authority
Delinquent personal property taxes (net)

sl

$ 14,970,498

$

91,945
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Note 5 - Capital Assets

The capital asset activity of the primary government’s governmental and business-type activities
is as follows:

Balance Balance
July1.2010 Additions Deletions June 30,2011
Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land h 31,849,182 $ 1,152,682 § - 3 33,001,864
Museum artifacts 2,084,666 - - 2,084,666
Construction-in-progress 8,533,229 7,053,266 7,230,252 8,356,243
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 42,467,077 8,205,948 7,230,252 43,442,773
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure-major/county/local roads 168,168,651 8,387,307 - 176,555,958
Infrastructure-local donated roads 33,551,524 - - 33,551,524
Infrastructure-sidewalks 30,499,101 508,183 - 31,007,284
Infrastructure-drains 1,853,098 3,200,636 - 5,053,734
Land improvements 7,188,038 314,922 - 7,502,960
Buildings and improvements 80,645,984 287,215 B 80,933,199
Miscellaneous equipment 4,999,958 200,417 = 5,200,375
Office equipment 2,887,836 104,486 - 2,992,322
Vehicles 18,656,284 322,285 1,230,857 17,747,712
Library books/audio visual 6,969,393 296,778 - 7,266,171
Total capital assets being depreciated 355,419,867 13,622,229 1,230,857 367,811,239
Less accumulated depreciation for: ;
Infrastructure-major/county/local roads 73,699,750 6,099,173 - 79,798,923
Infrastructure-local donated roads 23,546,157 1,291,022 - 24,837,179
Infrastructure-sidewalks 26,634,276 682,134 - 27,316,410
Infrastructure-drains 114,096 53,189 - 167,285
Land improvements 5,656,332 287,448 - 5,943,780
Buildings and improvements 41,911,132 2,938,296 - 44,849,428
Miscellaneous equipment 3,944,017 386,879 - 4,330,896
Office equipment 2,066,592 189,515 - 2,256,107
Vehicles 13,585,836 1,293,390 1,230,857 13,648,369
Library books/audio visual 5,229,004 436,241 - 5.665,245
Total accumulated depreciation 196,387,192 13,657,287 1,230,857 208,813,622
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 159,032,675 (35,058) - 158,997,617
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 201,499,752 $ 8,170,890 § 7,230,252 % 202.,440.390
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Balance Balance
July1,.2010 Additions Deletions June 30.2011
Business-Type Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 6,738,504 § - % - 3 6,738,504
Construction-in-progress 11,823,082 3,453,582 5,495,513 9,781,151
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 18,561,586 3,453,582 5,495,513 16,519,655
Capital assets, being depreciated:
‘W ater and sewer transmission and
distribution system 158,595,628 5,918,223 - 164,513,851
Service connections 750,121 - - 750,121
Land improvements 8,898,232 - - 8,898,232
Buildings and improvements 7,319,908 31,534 - 7,351,442
Miscellaneous equipment 2,738,123 175,594 - 2,913,717
Motor vehicles 557,613 47,403 - 605,016
Furniture, fixtures and other 261,330 - - 261,330
Total capital assets being depreciated 179,120,955 6,172,754 - 185,293,709
Less accumulated depreciation for:
W ater and sewer transmission and
distribution system 60,252,660 3,166,793 - 63,419,453
Service connections 750,121 - - 750,121
Land improvements 2,089,675 223,763 - 2.313,438
Buildings and improvements 3,952,007 282,787 = 4,234,794
Miscellaneous equipment 2,302,123 141,316 E 2,443,439
Motor vehicles 444,705 33,090 - 477,795
Fumiture, fixtures and other 261,330 B - 261,330
Total accumulated depreciation 70,052,621 3,847,749 - 73,900,370
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 109,068,334 2,325,005 - 111,393,339
Total business-type activities capital assets, net $ 127629920 $ 5,778,587 § 5495513 $§ 127,912,994

-44 -



CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

Note 5 - Capital Assets - Continued

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 3,902,481
Public safety 769,153
Public works 8,171,335
Community and economic development 17,790
Recreation and culture 796,528
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 13,657,287

Business-type activities:

Water $ 2,022,429
Sanitary Sewer 1,217,991
Aquatic Center 164,102
Sylvan Glen Golf Course 145,585
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 297,642
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 3,847,749

Note 6 - Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers

The amounts of interfund receivables, payables and transfers are as follows as of June 30, 2011:

Due to

Due from Other

Other Funds Funds
General Fund $ 3,318,614 § -

Enterprise Funds

Aquatic Center Fund - 324,332
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Fund - 4,134,127
Sylvan Glen Golf Course Fund 1.139.845 -

$ 4458459 § 4,458,459

Interfund balances represent routine and temporary cash flow assistance from mainly the general
fund until amounts are transferred from fund investment accounts. The Sylvan Glen golf course
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fund and General Fund provide funds for the Sanctuary Lake golf course fund until its operations
provide enough funding to cover expenses.

Interfund transfers reported in the fund statements are as follows as of June 30, 2011:

Fund Transferred from Fund Transferred to Amount
Nonmajor Governmental Funds General Fund $ 3,289,543
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 3,447,677
Capital Projects Fund 1,000,000
7,737,220
Capital Projects Fund General Fund 1,000,000
Internal Service Funds 34,905
1,034,905
Sewer Fund General Fund 492,020
Total $ 9.264.145

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Major streets fund transfer to general fund for routine road maintenance in the amount of
$1,830,794. Major streets fund transfer to capital projects fund of $1,000,000 representing funding
of road improvements. Major streets transfer to local streets of $332,750 representing allowable
redirection of state funding. Local streets fund transfer to general fund for routine road
maintenance in the amount of $1,458,749. General debt service fund transfer to Proposal A, B, and
C debt service funds in the amount of $3,114,927 for principal and interest payments on
outstanding debt.

Capital Projects Fund

Transfer to general fund per budget amendment for items that fell under the threshold to be
considered capital purchases.

Sewer Fund

Transfer to general fund for storm sewer operating expenditures.
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Note 7 - Operating Leases
The City leases copy machines and telephones which are being treated as operating leases. The

leases have various terms of three to four years and the future minimum lease payments remaining
on these leases are as follows:

Year Ending June 30

2012 $41,131
2013 36,370
2014 32,139

Lease costs for the year ended June 30, 2011, were $116,751.

Note 8 - Long-term Liabilities

The following is a summary of long-term liability transactions of the City for the year ended

June 30, 2011:
Downtown
Development
Storm Total Authority
Drains and Street Inte rnal Long-Term
IBNR Bonds Enterprise Service Debt Construction
Long-term debt/liabilities
payable at
July 1, 2010 $ 30,747,061 $ 850,000 $ 10,700,000 $ 4951,077 $ 47,248,138 § 24,095,000
Addition of new
debt 14,720,540 - - 1,606,941 16,327,481 -
Long-term debt
retired (17,411,747) (175,000) (400,000) (2,718,703) (20,705,450) (2,065,000)
Total long-term debt/liabilities
payable at
June 30, 2011 $28,055,854 $ 675,000 $10,300,000 $3,839,315 $42,870,169 §$22,030,000
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Governmental Activities

George W. Kuhn Drain District Bonds,
Series 2007G dated 9/20/07; original
issue amount $46,242; bearing interest at
1.625%,; principal due in annual
installments of $1,949 to $2,599

through April 1, 2028

Street, Roads and Streetscape Improvement
General Obligation Bonds dated 11/1/01;
original issuance amount $6,850,000;
bearing interest at 3.25% to 4.70%; principal
due in annual installments of $150,000 to
$600,000 through October 1, 2020; refunded

Public Safety Facilities and City Hall
General Obligation Bonds dated 8/1/00;
original issuance amount $2,330,000;
bearing interest at 4.625% to 4.75%;
principal due in annual installments of
$80,000 to $500,000 through October 1,
2010

Public Safety Facilities and City Hall
General Obligation Bonds dated 11/1/01;
original issuance amount $1,170,000;
bearing interest at 3.75% to 4.75%; principal
due in annual installments of $15,000 to
$110,000 through October 1, 2020; refunded

George W. Kuhn Drain District Drain
Bonds, Series 2001D dated12/20/01;
original issuance amount $81,089; bearing
interest at 2.50%; principal due in annual
installments of $3,198 to $5,116 through
April 1, 2025

-

Due
Balance Additions Balance Within
July 1, 2010 (Deductions) June 30, 2011 One Year

$ 41,687 § (2,079 $ 39,608 § 2,079
325,000 (325,000) - -
500,000 (500,000) - -

55,000 (55,000) - -
42,020 (2,686) 39,334 2,558



CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

Governmental Activities — Continued

George W. Kuhn Drain District Drain
Bonds, Series 2008H dated 9/22/08;
original issuance amount $135,137; bearing
interest at 2.50%; principal due in annual
installments of $7,638 to $12,473 through
April 1, 2024

Refunding Bonds, Recreation; dated
3/31/10; original issuance amount
$5,910,000; bearing interest at 2.0% to
5/0%,; principal due in annual installments
of $15,000 to $665,000 through October 1,
2020

Community Center and Recreational
Facilities General Obligation Bonds dated
11/1/01; original issuance amount
$9,470,000; bearing interest at 3.00% to
4.625%; principal due in annual installments
of $200,000 to $700,000 through October 1,
2020; refunded

North Arm Relief Drain Revenue Bonds
dated 1998; original issuance amount
$926,972; bearing interest at 2.25%;
principal due in annual installments of
$38,408 to $54,933 through October 1, 2020

George W. Kuhn Drain District Drain
Bonds, Series 2001C dated 10/1/01; original
issuance amount $2,102,682; bearing
interest at 2.50%; principal due in annual
installments of $82,368 to $131,609 through
April 1, 2024

Michigan Transportation Fund Bonds
serviced by the Downtown Development
Authority Fund, dated 2/1/2000; original
issuance amount $5,600,000; bearing
interest at 4.75% to 5.45%; principal due in
annual installments of $125,000 to
$1,300,000 through May 1, 2014
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Balance

July 1, 2010 (Deductions) June 30, 2011

Additions

$ 189,157

5,910,000

500,000

355,975

1,576,884

850,000

$ (8,056) $

(15,000)

(500,000)

(45,089)

(95,414)

(175,000)

Balance

181,101

5,895,000

508,486

1,481,470

675,000

Due
Within

One Year

$

8,185

520,000

46,090

97,844

200,000
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Governmental Activities - Continued

Balance

Additions Balance

Due
Within

July 1, 2010 (Deductions) June 30, 2011 One Year

Public Safety Facilities and City Hall
General Obligation Bonds, dated 2/1/03;
original issuance amount $14,500,000;
bearing interest at 2.50% to 4.50%; principal
due in annual installments of $500,000 to

$1,100,000 through April 1, 2020; refunded $11,000,000 $(10,000,000)$ 1,000,000

Refunding Bonds, Public Safety Facilities

and City Hall, dated 10/18/10; original
issuance amount $9,110,000; bearing

interest at 2.0% to 5.0%,; principal due in
annual installments of $965,000 to $1,060,000
through October 1, 2020

Refunding Bonds, Streets, dated 3/31/10;

original issuance amount $4,515,000; bearing

interest at 2.0% to 5.0%; principal due in

annual installments of $15,000 to $575,000

through October 1, 2020 4,515,000

George W. Kuhn Drain District

Refunding Drain Bonds, Series 2007,

dated 8/01/07; original issuance

amount $318,728; bearing interest at

2.55%; principal due in annual

installments of $1,663 to $29,033 302,357
through April 1, 2024

George W. Kuhn Drain District Drain Bonds

dated 9/25/05, Series 2005; original issuance

amount $41,440; bearing interest at 1.625%;

principal due in annual installments of

$1,790 to $2,430 through April 1, 2026 32,200

Refunding Bonds, dated 2/29/08; original

issuance amount $3,505,000; bearing

interest at 3.00% to 4.00%; principal due in

annual installments of $165,000 to $365,000

through October 1, 2020 3,120,000

= Bl

9,110,000 9,110,000

(15,000) 4,500,000

(9,337) 293,020

(1,819) 30,381

(215,000) 2,905,000

$1,000,000

345,000

9.337

1,819

210,000
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Governmental Activities - Continued

George W. Kuhn Drain District Drain
Bonds, Series 2000A dated 10/1/00; original
issuance amount $457,372; bearing interest
at 2.50%; principal due in annual
installments of $17,906 to $28,650 through
April 1, 2022

Refunding bonds (Public Safety), dated
3/31/10; original issuance amount $835,000;
bearing interest at 2.0% to 5.0%; principal
due in annual installments of $60,000 to
$105,000 through October 1, 2020

George W. Kuhn Drain District Drain
Bonds, Series 2001E dated 1/1/02; original
issuance amount $252,476; bearing
interest at 4.00% to 5.25%; principal due
in annual installments of $8,953 to
$18,415 through April 1, 2024

Total Long-term Debt
Other Long-term Obligations
Compensated Absences

Incurred but not reported insurance claims

Total Governmental Activities

Balance

Due
Additions Balance Within

July 1, 2010 (Deductions) June 30, 2011 One Year

§ 301,078

$ (21,871) § 279,207 § 22,383

835,000 - 835,000 60,000
21,104 (10.232) 10.872 10,872
30,670,062 _(2.886.583) _ 27,783.479 _2,536,167
4,951,077 1,606,941 - -

- (2,718,703) 3,839,315 2,025,941

926,999 5,610,540 - -

- _(5.590.164) 947,375 __489.405

$ 36,548,138 $(3,977.969) § 32,570,169 $5,051,513

Compensated absences are liquidated through the Internal Service Fund and incurred but not reported insurance
claims are generally liquidated through the General Fund.
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Business-Type Activities

Due
Balance Additions Balance Within

July 1, 2010 (Deductions) June 30, 2011 One Year
Municipal Building Authority Golf Course
Bonds serviced by the Golf Course Fund,
dated 7/1/02; original issuance amount
$12,000,000; bearing interest at 3.25% to
5.00%; principal due in annual installments
of $200,000 to $900,000 through

December 1, 2027 $ 10,700,000 $ (400,000) $ 10,300,000 $ 400,000
Total Governmental and
Business-type Activities $47,248,138 $(4,377,969) § 42,870,169 $5,451,513
Component Units

Downtown Development Authority

Development Bonds, dated 7/19/01; original

issuance amount $14,255,000; bearing

interest at 4.00% to 5.50%; principal due in

annual installments of $545,000 to

$1,165,000 through November 1, 2018 $ 8,595,000 $(770,000) $7,825,000 § 805,000

2002 Downtown Development Authority
Community Center Facilities Bonds serviced
by the Downtown Development Authority
Fund, dated 9/1/02; original issuance amount
$9,700,000; bearing interest at 2.05% to
5.00%,; principal due in annual installments

of $400,000 to $850,000 through May 1,
2018 6,325,000  (600,000) 5,725,000 600,000

2003 Downtown Development Authority

Community Center Facilities Junior Lien

Bonds serviced by the Downtown

Development Authority Fund, dated 6/1/03;

original issuance amount $4,025,000;

bearing interest at 2.50% to 4.25%; principal

due in annual installments of $75,000 to

$500,000 through November 1, 2018 3,275,000 (200,000) 3,075,000 250,000
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Component Units — Continued

Due
Balance Additions Balance Within

July 1, 2010 (Deductions) June 30,2011 One Year
Downtown Development Authority
Refunding Bonds, dated 7/19/01; original
issuance amount $9,745,000; bearing
interest at 4.00% to 5.50%; principal due in
annual installments of $380,000 to $800,000

through November 1, 2018 $ 5,405,000 $ 560.000

$ 5,900,000 $ (495.000)

Total Downtown Development

Authority $24,095,000 $(2.065,000) $22.030,000 $2.215.,000

It is the intent of the City that all payments relating to these obligations will be made from
revenues generated from operations of the respective funds. The City has pledged its full faith and
credit for the debt if revenues are insufficient to meet the obligations of all general obligation

bonds.

The annual debt requirements to maturity for all long-term debts outstanding as of June 30, 2011, exclusive
of earned but unpaid sick pay and insurance claims are as follows:

Business Type Activities Component Units

Government Activities

Year Serviced by Amount of Amount of Downtown Amount of
Ending Government Annual Proprietary Annual Development Annual

June Fund Types Street Bonds Interest Fund Types Interest Total Authority Interest
2012 $ 2,336,167 $ 200,000 $ 1,027,301 $ 400,000 £ 485,446 $ 4,448.914 $ 2,215,000 $ 989,480
2013 2,401,776 225,000 947,891 400,000 468,597 4,443,264 2,365,000 888,600
2014 2,441,746 250,000 848,556 400,000 451,247 4,391,549 2,490,000 772,869
2015 2,572,182 - 739,671 450,000 431,248 4,193,101 2,650,000 648,950
2016 2,662,716 - 639,864 500,000 408,998 4,211,578 2,815,000 515,813
2017 2,718,788 - 531,341 500,000 386,748 4,136,877 3,005,000 376,638
2018 2,649,269 - 427,666 500,000 364,248 3,941,183 3,175,000 231,600
2019 2,834,959 - 315,285 600,000 339,123 4,089,367 3,315,000 78,450
2020 2,876,159 - 192,184 600,000 310,999 3,979,342 - -
2021 3,010,977 - 74,254 600,000 282,124 3,967,355 - -
2022 201,424 - 15,666 600,000 252,500 1,069,590 - -
2023 164,082 - 10,127 700,000 220,000 1,094,209 - -
2024 166,839 - 5,753 700,000 185,000 1,057,592 - -
2025 16,111 - 1,320 800,000 147,500 964,931 - -
2026 16,478 - 959 800,000 107,500 924,937 - -
2027 14,550 - 590 850,000 66,250 931,390 - -
2028 24256 - 250 900,000 22,500 947,006 - -
Total $27,108,479 $ 675,000 $ 5,778,678 $10,300,000 $4,930,028 $48,792,185 $ 22,030,000 $4,502,400
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Special Assessment Bonds

In the event that special assessment collections are insufficient to meet debt service costs of such
issues, the City has pledged its full faith and credit as additional security for payment of related
principal and interest.

Advance Refunding

During 2011, the government advance refunded a general obligation bond issue. The government
issued $9,110,000 of general obligation refunding bonds to provide resources to purchase U.S.
government securities that were placed in an irrevocable trust for the purpose of generating
resources for all future debt service payments of the refunded debt. As a result, the refunded
bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability has been removed from long-term debt. This
advance refunding was undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the next 10 years by
$621,840 and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present value of the debt service
payments of the refunded and refunding bonds) of $555,195.

Note 9 - Net Assets/Fund Balance Classifications

Net Assets

Net assets have been restricted for (a) debt service, based upon bond indenture agreements and the
City's understanding that bond proceeds generated by these funds are only to be spent on specified
construction or the retirement of related debt, (b) replacements and extensions based upon bond
indenture agreements or the limited purpose for which a fund was established, and (c) capital
assets net of any outstanding debt.

Restricted for Pension and Other Employee Benefits

The related amount restricted in the Fiduciary Fund reserve is largely comprised of equity
recorded in the pension trust fund. In addition, equity is set aside to pay for sick pay and vacation
pay in the internal service funds.

Fund Balance

As noted in Note 1 — “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies”, The City classifies fund
balance by level of constraints imposed on resources by either external or internal factors or the
form in which the resources exist.
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The following is a summary of these constraints on fund balances:

Nonspendable:
Inventory & prepaids
Due from Sanctuary Lake golf course
Due from Aquatic Center
Total non-spendable

Restricted:
Special revenue funding source restrictions
Debt funding source restrictions
Permanent fund source restrictions
Budget stabilization
Capital Improvements
Total restricted
Committed:
Volunteer Firefighters Incentive Reserve
Subsequent years budgets
Total committed

Assigned:
Insurance Claims
Tax appeals
Total assigned

Unassigned
Total fund balances

Note 10 - Risk Management

Capital
General Projects Nonmajor
$ 715,505 - $ =
2,994.282
324,332

4,034,119 - -
3,811,074
- - 1,632,521
- = 222,655
1,508,257 - -
- 6,381,438 "
1,508,257 6,381,438 5,666,250
1,000.000 - -
2,610,131 6,161,360 1,084,200
3,610,131 6,161,360 1,084,200
3,753,000 - =
2,200,000 - -
5,953,000 = e
12,359,648 & Z
$ 27,465,155 $12,542,798 $6,750,450

The City has entered into a Public Entity Risk Pool with other Michigan units of government as an
individual member for its general liability, property damage insurance including auto and public
The City’s maximum deductible for property
coverage is $11,000 per occurrence. The liability maximum self-insured retention is $500,000 per
occurrence with an aggregate stop loss of $1,000,000 per policy year for both property and

officials liability and contractors equipment.

liability.

The City accounts for transactions related to these risks in accordance with GASB No. 10,
“Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues”, which
states that a liability for claims must be reported if information prior to the issuance of the
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Note 11 -

financial statements indicates it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the
financial statements, and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

No settlements have exceeded insurance coverage during the last three years. The City has made
no significant reductions in insurance coverage during the year. The City has received no
indication that any significant losses exist at June 30, 2011.

The following are the changes in Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) estimates:

Fiscal Year Beginning Ending

Ending June 30, Balance Additions Deductions Balance
2010 S 738622 S 5056858 S (4,868,481) S 926,999
2011 926,999 5,610,540 (5,590,164) 947,375

The City has also entered into a public entity risk pool with other Michigan units of government
for its workers compensation insurance.

Litigation and Contingent Liabilities
Litigation

The City is a defendant to various claims, legal actions and complaints arising in the ordinary
course of business. The City of Troy denies the allegations and plans a vigorous defense. In the
opinion of legal counsel, all such matters as indicated above are adequately covered by insurance,
or if not so covered, are without merit or of such kind, or involve such amounts that an
unfavorable disposition would not have a material effect on the financial position of the City.

Condemnations

The City of Troy has exercised its condemnation rights under Michigan law and has awarded the
affected property owners a monetary settlement for their property. Certain of these property
owners have contested the settlement amount and have subsequently filed suit. The amount of
final settlements cannot be determined and have not been recorded in the financial statements.

Tax Appeals to the Michigan Tax Tribunal

The City has several outstanding property tax assessment appeals totaling approximately
$217,987,637 (taxable values) to the Michigan Tax Tribunal. If the City is not successful with a
portion of these appeals, the City of Troy's share of the tax to be refunded would be the levied rate
(approximately $10 per thousand of assessed value) plus interest. The amount of refund (if any)
cannot be determined as of June 30, 2011.
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Note 12 -

Note 13 -

Property Taxes

Property taxes are recorded on the modified accrual basis of accounting and are levied, and
become a lien on July 1% on the taxable valuation of the property located within its boundaries as
of the preceding December 31%. Taxable value is determined by the prior year’s taxable value
plus 5% or the Consumer Price Index whichever is less, starting with the 1994 state equalized
value as the base taxable value. Assessed values are equalized by the State, to closely
approximate fifty percent of estimated current market value. The final taxable value of real and
personal property subject to property tax within the City for the fiscal 2010-2011 levy was
$4,843,613,012. The City's operating tax rate was 6.50 mills for the same year with additional
mills of .50, 1.53 and .87 levied to fund various types of debt service costs, capital outlay
expenditures and refuse removal and disposal, respectively.

In addition to collecting their own taxes, the City also acts as collection agent for all overlapping
governments and school districts within its boundaries, which includes seven school districts, two
intermediate school districts, a community college, and Oakland County.

City taxes are received in one installment, collectible from July 1* to September 1%. Any real
property taxes not paid by March 1%, following the due date, are reimbursed by the County. The
County Treasurer takes over collection responsibility at that date, as well as delinquent personal

property taxes.

The City is occasionally ordered by the Michigan Tax Tribunal to refund taxes already collected
and recorded into revenue. It is, therefore, the City's policy to compensate for doubtful accounts,
as well as refunds of taxes already collected through use of an allowance for doubtful taxes
receivable and as assigned general fund balance.

Retirement System and Plan

Employee Retirement System

The City of Troy, Michigan, under the authorization of the City ordinance, maintains employee
retirement plans covering all full-time employees. The single-employer defined benefit plan
provides retirement benefits based on credited service time and average compensation with death
and disability benefits, and under some circumstances, payments to dependents. Normal
retirement age is 65 with provisions for early and late retirement. Participants under such plan are
required to contribute a fixed percentage of their total compensation, with the City's contribution
being an amount sufficient to cover current service costs and prior service costs which are being
funded and charged to operations over the average expected active future working life time. The
plan is closed to new participants. Current membership in the system is as follows:
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Group December 31, 2010
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 265
Vested terminated employees 11
Active employees 115

The employee retirement system financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions
are due. Employer contributions to each plan are recognized when due and the employer has
made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized
when due and payable in accordance with the terms of each plan.

The City's funding policy provides for periodic employer contributions at actuarially determined
rates that, expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll, are designed to accumulate
sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. The normal cost and amortization payment for the year
ended June 30, 2011 were determined using the aggregate cost method. Unfunded actuarial
liabilities were amortized as a level percent of payroll on an open basis over the expected future
service and pay for service of active members.

For the year ended June 30, 2011, contributions totaling $3,770,248 ($2,484,436 employer and
$1,285,812 employee) were made in accordance with contribution requirements determined by an
actuarial valuation of the plan as of December 31, 2009, which was net of the amortization of
assets in excess of unfunded actuarial accrued liability. Employer and employee contributions
were based on 26.0 percent and 1.5 to 4.0 percent, respectively, of covered payroll in the amount
of $9,450,505 for the year then ended. All contributions pertain to the pension plan only.

Significant actuarial assumptions are (a) a 6.5 percent investment return, (b) salary increases of
3.5-7.5 percent per year compounded annually, attributable to inflation and additional salary
increases ranging from 0.0%-2.5% per year attributable to seniority/merit and the assumption that
benefits will not increase after retirement. The actuarial value of assets was determined using
techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility over a five year period.

Three-Year Trend Information
Employee Retirement System
($ Amounts in Thousands)

Fiscal Actuarial Annual

Year Valuation Pension Percentage Net
Ended Date Cost of APC Pension
June 30, December 31, (APC) Contributed Obligation
2009 2007 $ 428 100.0% None
2010 2008 1,361 100.0 None
2011 2009 2,484 100.0 None
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Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters

The City of Troy has a noncontributory discretionary incentive plan established by resolution of
the City Council covering its volunteer firefighters. The single-employer plan benefits are
determined based on annual contribution amounts for each year of incentive service. The normal
cost and amortization payment for the year ended June 30, 2011 was determined using an
individual entry age funding method. At January 1, 2011, the benefit payment amount was $605
per year for incentive service. Participants are eligible for payments at age 55 with ten or more
years of volunteer service, age 50 with 25 years of service or 30 years of incentive service
regardless of age. The City's contribution to the plan for the year ended June 30, 2011, was
$873,691. The volunteer firefighters are not paid any remuneration for their service. Unfunded
actuarial liabilities were amortized as a level dollar amount on a closed basis over 25 years.

Group December 31, 2009
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 79
Vested terminated employees 27
Active employees 137

Significant actuarial assumptions used include a 6.5 percent investment rate of return. The
actuarial value of assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term

volatility over a four year period.
Three-Year Trend Information
Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters

($ Amounts in Thousands)
Fiscal Actuarial Annual
Year Valuation Pension Percentage Net
Ended Date Cost of APC Pension
June 30, December 31, (APC) Contributed Obligation
2009 2007 $ 885 100.0% None
2010 2008 864 100.0 None
2011 2009 874 100.0 None
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The Employee Retirement System Pension System (ERS) uses the aggregate actuarial cost
method. Because this method does not indentify or separately amortize unfunded actuarial
accrued liabilities, funded status and funding progress is presented using the entry age actuarial
cost method and the information presented is intended to serve as a surrogate for the funded status

and funding progress of the plan.

The funded status of the ERS and the Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters (IPVF) as of
December 31, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation date, is as follows (dollar amount in

thousands).
Unfunded
AAL as a
Percentage of

Actuarial Active Active

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Member Member
Valuation Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered Covered
December 31, Assets (AAL) AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
2009 (a) (b) (b) - (a) (a)/(b) © (b-a)/(c)
ERSPB $ 133,400 $ 139,232 $§ 5,832 95.8 % $ 8959 65.1%
IPVF 5,710 12,925 7213 44.2 N/A N/A

The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI)
following the notes to the financial statements, present multiyear trend information about whether
the actuarial values of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the AALs for
benefits. The plans do not issue a separate financial report.
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JUNE 30, 2011

Statement of Net Assets

Employees' Discretionary
Retirement Fire Incentive
System Reserve Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,496,179 $ 34,140
Interest receivable 194,415 9,141
Investments
U.S. Government securities 10,752,503 4,731,101
Corporate bonds 16,458,682 -
Corporate equities, preferred 1,932,390 -
Corporate equities, common 104,354,242 -
Mutual funds 38,470,515 910,580
Municipal bonds 3,241,336
Total assets 180,900,262 5,684,962
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 290 22,650
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits 146,670,309 5,662,312
Held in trust for postemployment
healthcare benefits 34,229,663 -
Total net assets $ 180,899,972 $ 5,662,312
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

Statement of Changes in Fund Net Assets

Additions
Contributions
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Total contributions

Investment income
Interest
Dividends
Net adjustment in fair value of investments
Total investiment earnings

Total additions

Deductions
Benefits
Administrative expenses

Total deductions
Net increase in plan net assets

Net assets held in trust, beginning of year for:
Pension benefits
Postemployent healthcare benefits

Total net assets held in trust, beginning of year

Net assets held in trust, end of year for:
Pension benefits
Postemployment healthcare benefits

Total net assets held in trust, end of year

B o

Employees' Discretionary
Retirement Fire Incentive
System Reserve Fund

2,484,436 $ 873,691
1,285,812 -
3,770,248 873,691
1,792,008 225,623
2,752,363 -
32,406,285 236,971
36,950,656 462,594
40,720,904 1,336,285
11,300,869 660,014
99,848 22,100
11,400,717 682,114
29,320,187 654,171
114,003,190 5,008,141
37,576,595 5
151,579,785 5,008,141
146,670,309 5,662,312
34,229,663 =

$ 180,899,972

$ 5,662,312




CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

Note 14 - Defined Contribution Plan

The City maintains a defined contribution plan (DCP) administered by the International City
Manager’s Association Retirement Corporation (ICMARC), which qualifies under the Internal
Revenue Code Section 401(a). Classified, Exempt and Fire Staff Officers in the City’s
Employees Retirement System were given the option to transfer to the DCP by December 31,
1997. Employees who elected to transfer to the DCP had their individually actuarially determined
earned retirement benefits in the Employees Retirement System determined as of the date of
election to transfer to the DCP. In 1998, the City afforded the option to AFSCME members of
the Employees Retirement System to elect a transfer to the DCP, of which 41 employees elected
such transfer. In 1999, the City afforded the option to MAP members of the Employees
Retirement System to elect a transfer to the DCP, of which 29 employees elected such transfer. In
2000, the City afforded the option to TCOA members of the Employees Retirement System to
elect a transfer to the DCP, of which 20 employees elected such transfer. In 2002, the City
afforded the option to TPOA members of the Employees Retirement System to elect a transfer to
the DCP of which 19 employees elected such transfer. The DCP is also in effect for all new full-
time employees. Total membership in the DCP as of June 30, 2011 was 279.

The DCP maintains a schedule of vesting as follows: participants who transferred from the
Employees Retirement System are fully vested. For new hires the following schedule applies:
50% vested after 3 years, 75% vested after 4 years and 100% vested after 5 years. Employees
contribute 3 to 6 percent of their salary, while the employer contributes 10 to 13 percent. All
employees are able to contribute up to 10 percent of their salary on a voluntary after-tax basis.
All contributions are remitted to a third-party plan administrator.

The DCP was established by City Council resolution and any amendments to the plan would
require City Council approval.

The City’s payroll for employees covered by the DCP for the year ended June 30, 2011, was
$17,729,192. The required contributions, which matched those actually made, were $795,690 by
employees and $1,977,892 by the City, representing 4.5 percent and 11.2 percent of covered
payroll, respectively.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

Note 15 - Retiree Health Care Trust Fund

Plan Description

The City provides certain healthcare benefits for retired employees in accordance with the
bargaining group agreements and other requirements. Substantially all of the City’s full-time
employees may become eligible for those benefits if they reach normal retirement age while
working for the City. The City’s contribution for healthcare benefits is accounted for in the
Retiree Health Care Trust Fund. The employer’s contribution of $3,545,578 represented the
required contribution of $3,208,843 or 12.88% of covered payroll totaling $24,913,381, $55,546
of prior year Other Postemployment Benefit Obligations and $281,188 which will be used to
offset future required contributions. During the current year, healthcare benefits paid for 264
retirees totaled $3,346,932, which was paid out of the Employees Retirement System. It should be
noted that although healthcare benefits are paid out of another fund, they do not qualify as
required contributions, as healthcare assets in the Employees Retirement System are considered
when actuarially determining required contributions. Future payments will be made by the
Employees Retirement System until the reserves that have accumulated there are exhausted.

This is a single employee defined benefit plan administered by the City. The Plan does not issue a
separate stand-alone financial statement. Administrative costs are paid by the plan through
employer contributions.

Funding Policy

For current employees not covered by the Retiree Health Savings Account Plan, the City includes
retirees and their spouses in its healthcare plan, with no contribution required by participants if
they retire with 25 or more years of service. If under 25 years of service, the City contributes 4%
per year of service, or $400 per month, whichever is greater.

Funding Progress

For the year ended June 30, 2011, the City has estimated the cost of providing retiree healthcare
benefits through an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2008. The valuation computes an
annual required contribution, which represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis,
is projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a
period not to exceed 30 years.
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The valuation’s computed contribution and actual funding are summarized as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 3,208,843
Amount contributed (3.545.578)
Decrease in OPEB obligation (336,735)
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year (adj.) 55,547
Net OPEB (asset), end of year $ (281,188)

The net OPEB obligation at beginning of year has been adjusted to reflect discounted interest at
6.5% or $3,390.

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the
net OPEB obligation for 2011 and the two preceding years were as follows (dollar amounts in

thousands):
Percentage of Annual

OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Fiscal Year Ended Annual OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation (Asset)
June 30, 2009 $ 3,759 97.1% $ 157
June 30, 2010 3,698 102.9 52
June 30, 2011 3,546 100.0 (281)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

In the December 31, 2010 actuarial valuation, the individual entry age normal actuarial cost
method was used. The actuarial assumptions include an assumed rate of return of 6.5%. An
annual healthcare cost trend of 9% was used in fiscal year 2011 decreasing to 3.5% by 2020. The
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) is being amortized as a level percent of payroll on a
closed basis. The remaining amortization period as of December 31, 2010 was 28 years.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality and the health care cost trend. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations
and new estimates are made about the future.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan
as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided
at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of the benefit costs between the
employer and plan members to that point.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2011

The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the
effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets,
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

Unfunded
AAl asa
Percentage of

Actuarial Active Active

Actuarial Accrued Member Member

Actuarial Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Assets (AAL) AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
December 31, (a) (b) (b)—(a) (a)/(b) (c) (b-a)/(c)
2008 $ 38,004 $ 91,966 § 53,872 41.4% $ 31,168 172.8%

2010 60,360 89,952 29,592 67.1 25,951 114.0

The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI)
following the notes to the financial statements, present multiyear trend information about whether
the actuarial values of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the AALs for

benefits.

Statement of Net Assets

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Mutual funds
Total assets

NET ASSETS
Held in trust for postemployment

healthcare benefits
Total net assets
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Retiree
Health Care
Trust Fund

$ 2,492,089

22,211 217
24,803,306

24,803,306
$ 24,803,306




CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

Statement of Changes in Fund Net Assets

Retiree
Health Care
Trust Fund
Additions
Contributions
Employer contributions $ 3,545,578
Investment income
Interest 13,304
Dividends 363,105
Net adjustment in fair value of mvestments 3,716,555
Total nvestiment earnings 4,092,964
Total additions 7,638,542
Deductions
Benefits -
Net increase in plan net assets 7,638,542
Net assets held in trust, beginning of year for:
Postemployment healthcare benefits 17,164,764
Net assets held in trust, end of year for:
Postemployment healthcare benefits $ 24,803,306
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

Note 16 -

Note 17 -

Deficit Net Assets

The Sanctuary Lake golf course fund has deficit net assets of $4,578,020 at June 30, 2011.

The Sanctuary Lake golf course completed its sixth year of operations with an operating loss of
$83,507 including depreciation expense of $297,642. This resulted in a decrease change in net
assets of $582,841 which included $499,334 in interest expense, compared to a decrease change in
net assets of $664,226 last fiscal year. Cash flows from operations were positive in the amount of
$873,834. Several reasons are attributable for the deficit:

e Economy
e Weather conditions

The City turned over operations and management of both courses on June 15, 2010 to Billy
Casper Golf with a strategic plan of eliminating the deficit in the next few years.

The Downtown Development Authority (component unit) reflected a deficit net asset position of
$12,683,589 compared to $12,678,066 last fiscal year. This deficit is attributable to recognizing

outstanding long-term debt.

Budget Stabilization Fund

The City has established a budget stabilization fund by adopting a City ordinance in accordance
with PA 30 of 1978 - MCL 144.441. The City Council may appropriate all or part of a surplus in
the General Fund to the Budget Stabilization Fund. The amount in the Budget Stabilization Fund
shall not exceed 15% of the City’s most recent General Fund budget as originally adopted or 15%
of the average of the City’s five most recent General Fund budgets, as amended, whichever is less.
Appropriations from the Budget Stabilization Fund may be used to cover any General Fund
deficit, prevent a reduction in the level of services when revenues are not being collected in a
sufficient manner or when the subsequent year budget indicates a shortfall, and to cover expenses
arising from a natural disaster unless federal or state funds are received to offset the appropriation.
In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement number 54, the
Budget Stabilization Fund has been included as part of the General Fund for reporting purposes.
Any residual fund balance is reported as restricted in the General Fund.
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Note 17 - Restatement of Beginning Fund Balance

The City adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB) Statement
Number 54 — “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions”. Accordingly
the City has combined the previously reported Budget Stabilization special revenue fund as a
component of the General Fund. The results of this combination to beginning fund balance is as

follows:
Nonmajor
General Governmental
Fund Funds
Ending fund balance, as previously reported $ 23,741,886 $ 8,952,663
Reclassification of budget stabilization fund 1,806,995 (1,806,995)
Begininng fund balance, restated $ 25,548,881 $ 7,145,668

* % %k ok ok

- 69 -



This Page Intentionally Left Blank



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM AND INCENTIVE PLAN AND

RETIREE HEALTH CARE FUND



This page intentionally left blank



EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
($ amounts in thousands)

Unfunded
AAlL asa
Percentage of
Actuarial Active Active
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Member Member
Valuation Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered Covered
Date Assets (AAL) AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
December 31, (a) (b) (b) —(a) (a)/(b) (c) (b-a)/(c)
2005 § 128,790 $ 113,260 $ (15,530) 113.7 $ 12,100 (128.4)%
2006 132,168 119,299 (12,869) 110.8 11,472 (112.2)
2007 132,917 123,162 (9,755) 107.9 11,046 (88.3)
2008 128,249 126,138 (2,111) 101.7 10,953 (19.3)
2009 132,465 139,519 7,054 94.9 10,483 (67.3)
2010 133,400 139,232 5,832 95.8 8,959 65.1

Healthcare net assets of the Employees Retirement System are resources restricted for retiree health care
benefits and are not segregated for actuarial purposes. Subsequently the City has established a Retiree Health
Care Trust Fund in which resources are contributed and an actuarial valuation has been determined.

Analysis of the dollar amounts of actuarial value of assets or actuarial accrued liability in isolation can be
misleading. Expressing the actuarial value of assets as a percentage of the actuarial accrued liability provides
one indication of the system’s funded status on a going-concern basis. Analysis of this percentage over time
indicates whether the system is becoming financially stronger or weaker. As a general rule, a larger percent
indicates a healthier financial position. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability and annual covered payroll
are both affected by inflation. Expressing the unfunded actuarial accrued liability as a percentage of covered
payroll approximately adjusts for the effects of inflation and aids analysis of the progress being made in
accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. As a general rule, a smaller percent indicates a
healthier plan.

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
($ amounts in thousands)

Fiscal Actuarial
Year Valuation Annual

Ended Date Required Percent

June 30, December 31, Contribution Contributed

2006 2004 $ 213 100.0%
2007 2005 273 100.0
2008 2006 273 100.0
2009 2007 428 100.0
2010 2008 1,361 100.0
2011 2009 2,484 100.0
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SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
($ amounts in thousands)

INCENTIVE PLAN FOR VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Actuarial
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued
Valuation Value of Liability Unfunded Funded
Date Assets (AAL) AAL Ratio
December 31, (a) (b) (b) - (a) (a)/(b)
2005%* $ 6,572 $ 12,052 $§ 5,481 54.5 %
2006* 6,007 11,932 5,925 50.3
2007* 6,413 13,240 6,827 48.4
2008* 6,273 13,038 6,765 48.1
2009 5,325 12,625 7,300 42.2
2010 5,710 12,925 7,215 44.2
* After changes in benefit provisions.
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
($ amounts in thousands)
Fiscal Actuarial
Year Valuation Annual
Ended Date Required Percent
June 30, December 31, Contribution Contributed
2006 2004 $ 815 100.0 %
2007 2005 790 100.0
2008 2006 800 100.0
2009 2007 885 100.0
2010 2008 864 100.0
2011 2009 874 100.0

Y



OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

($ amounts in thousands)

Unfunded
AAL asa
Percentage of
Actuarial Actuarial Active Active
Valuation Actuarial Accrued Member Member
Date Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered Covered
December Assets (AAL) AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
31, (a) (b) (b)-(a) (a)/(b) © (b-2)/©
2006 $ 43,983 $§ 78,901 $ 34918 55.7% $ 31,038 112.5%
200’? * * * * * #
2008 38,094 91,966 53,872 41.4 31,168 172.8
2009 * #* * * * #
2010 60,360 89,952 29,592 67.1 25,951 114.0
* Not available
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
($ amounts in thousands)
FISCAL ACTUARIAL
YEAR VALUATION ANNUAL
ENDED DATE REQUIRED PERCENT
JUNE 30 DECEMBER 31 CONTRIBUTION CONTRIBUTED
2008 2006 $ 2,923 100.0%
2009 2006 3,759 97.1
2010 2008 3,698 102.9
2011 2008 3,209 100.0
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING BALANCE SHEEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011
Permanent
Special Revenue Fund
Community Total Cemetery
Major Loeal Develop t Special Perp 1
Streets Streets Refuse Block Grant Revenue Care
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,856,306 § 1,238,094 § 241,089 § (135953) § 3,199,536 § 222,655
Due from other governments 546,317 216,460 - 148,800 911,577 -
Total assets § 2402623 § 1454554 § 241,089 § 12,847 $ 4,111,113 § 222,655
Liabilities
Accounts payable s - 8 - % 157,092 % 12,847 § 170,039 %
Fund balance
Restricted 2,402,623 1,324,554 83,897 - 3,811,074 222,655
Committed - 130,000 - - 130,000 -
Total fund balances 2,402,623 1,454,554 83,897 - 3,941,074 222,655
Total liabilities
and fund balance $ 2,402,623 $ 1454554 § 241,089 § 12,847 § 4,111,113 § 222,655
Continued.....

-3 -



CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONCLUDED)

JUNE 30, 2011
Debt Service
Total
Total Nonmajor
General Proposal A Proposal B Proposal C Debt Governmental
Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Service Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,596,829 § - i - 8 - 0§ 2596829 § 6,019,020
Due from other governments - - - - - 911,577
Total assets § 25%829 § - 8 - 8 - $ 259,829 § 6,930,597
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 10,108 8 - 8 - 8 - 8§ 10,108 % 180,147
Fund balance
Restricted 1,632,521 - - . 1,632,521 5,666,250
Commited 954,200 - . - 954,200 1,084,200
Total fund balances 2,586,721 - - - 2,586,721 6,750,450
Total liabilities
and fund balance $ 259,829 § - 8 - 8 - % 259829 § 6,930,597
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Permanent
Special Revenue Fund
Community Total Cemetary
Major Local Development Special Perpetual
Streets Streets Refuse Block Grant Revenue Care
Revenues
Property taxes $ - 5 - % 40575713 8§ - $ 4,057,573 § -
Federal grants and reimbursements - - - 148,800 148,800 -
State grants and reimbursements 3,386,023 1,341,582 - - 4,727,605 =
Charges for services - - 4,860 - 4,860 2,650
Investment earnings 19,518 7,131 10,210 - 36,859 1,638
Other - - - - - -
Total revenues 3,405,541 1,348,713 4,072,643 148,800 8,975,697 4,288
Expenditures
Current
Sanitation - - 4,109,985 - 4,109,985 -
Community development - - E 148,800 148,800 -
Debt service
Principal - - - - - -
Interest - - - - &
Total expenditures - - 4,109,985 148,800 4,258,785 -
Revenues over (under) expenditures 3,405,541 1,348,713 (37,342) - 4,716,912 4,288
Other financing sources (uses)
Issuance of debt - - - - - -
Payments to escrow agents - - - - -
Premium on debt issuance - - - = 4 &
Transfers in - 332,750 - - 332,750 -
Transfers out (3,163,544) (1,458,749) - . (4,622,293) =
Total other financing (uses) sources (3,163,544) (1,125,999) - - (4,289,543) -
Net change in fund balances 241,997 222,714 (37,342) - 427,369 4,288
Fund balances, beginning of year (restated) 2,160,626 1,231,840 121,239 - 3,513,705 218,367
Fund balances, end of year § 2402623 § 1454554 % 83,897 § - $ 3941074 % 222,655
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONCLUDED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Revenues
Property taxes
Federal grants and reimbursements
State grants and reimbursements
Charges for services
Investment earnings
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
Sanitation
Community development
Debt service
Principal
Interest
Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)
Issuance of debt
Payments to escrow agents
Premium on debt issuance
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year (restated)

Fund balances, end of year

Debt Service
Total
Total Nonmajor
General Proposal A Proposal B Proposal C Debt Governmental
Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Service Funds

$ 233689 § - 8 - 8 $ 2336899 § 6,394,472
: 2 2 & - 148,800

_ = & - 4,727,605

N ; 5 - - 7,510

22,205 - - - 22,205 60,702
221,175 - . - 221,175 221,175
2,580,279 - - - 2,580,279 11,560,264

r 2 = - 4,109,985

= . - - - 148,800

175,000 555,000 1,055,000 515,000 2,300,000 2,300,000
117,227 295,771 590,159 242,632 1,245,789 1,245,789
292,227 850,771 1,645,159 757,632 3,545,789 7,804,574
2,288,052 (850,771) (1,645,159) (757,632) (965,510) 3,755,690

- - 9,110,000 - 9,110,000 9,110,000
- - (9,919,004) - (9,919,004) (9,919,004)

- - 947,639 - 947,639 947,639

- 850,771 1,506,524 757,632 3,114,927 3,447,677
(3,114,927) - - - (3,114,927) (7,737,220)
(3,114,927) 850,771 1,645,159 757,632 138,635 (4,150,908)
(826,875) - - - (826,875) (395,218)
3,413,596 - - - 3,413,596 7,145,668

$ 258,721 § - % - - § 258721 % 6,750,450
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MAJOR STREETS FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues

State grants and reimbursements $ 3,262,000 $ 3,262,000 $ 3,386,023 $ 124,023

Investment earnings 20,000 20,000 19,518 (482)
Total revenues 3,282,000 3,282,000 3,405,541 123,541
Other financing (uses)

Transfers out (3,282,000) (3,282,000) (3,163,544) 118,456
Net change in fund balances - - 241,997 241,997
Fund balance, beginning of year 2,160,626 2,160,626 2,160,626 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 2,160,626 $ 2,160,626 $ 2,402,623 $ 241,997
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
LOCAL STREETS FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues

State grants and reimbursements $ 1,292,000 $ 1,292,000 $ 1,341,582 $ 49,582

Investment earnings 12,000 12,000 7,131 (4,869)
Total revenues 1,304,000 1,304,000 1,348,713 44,713
Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in 422,150 332,750 332,750 -

Transfers out (1,726,150) (1,726,150) (1,458,749) 267,401
Total other financing (uses) (1,304,000) (1,393,400) (1,125,999) 267,401
Net change in fund balances - (89,400) 222,714 312,114
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,231,840 1,231,840 1,231,840 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 1,231,840 $ 1,142,440 $ 1,454,554 $ 312,114
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
REFUSE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Property taxes $ 4,092,000 $ 4,092,000 $4,057,573 $ (34,427)

Charges for services 4,500 4,500 4,860 360

Investment earnings 24.450 24,450 10,210 (14,240)
Total revenues 4,120,950 4,120,950 4,072,643 (48,307)
Expenditures

Sanitation 4,120,950 4,120,950 4,109,985 10,965
Net change in fund balances - - (37,342) (37,342)
Fund balance, beginning of year 121,239 121,239 121,239 -
Fund balance (deficit), end of year $ 121,239 $ 121,239 $ 83,897 $ (37,342)
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actnal (Negative)

Revenues

Federal grants $ 260,600 $ 460,480 § 148,800 $ (311,680)
Expenditures

Community development 260,600 460,480 148,800 311,680
Net change in fund balances - - - -
Fund balance, beginning of year - - - -
Fund balance, end of year $ - $ - § - $ -
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011
Sylvan Glen Aquatic
Golf Course Center Total
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,806,270 $ - $ 1,806,270
Accounts receivable 9,814 6,783 16,597
Due from other funds 1,139,845 - 1,139,845
Inventories 25,536 - 25,536
Prepaid expenses 13,891 - 13,891
Total current assets 2,995,356 6,783 3,002,139
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets not being depreciated 1,894,552 - 1,894,552
Capital assets being depreciated,
net of accumulated depreciation 624,928 1,592,031 2,216,959
Total capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation 2,519,480 1,592,031 4,111,511
Total assets 5,514,836 1,598,814 7,113,650
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 76,186 6,641 82,827
Due to other funds - 324,332 324,332
Other liabilities 128,792 - 128,792
Total liabilities 204,978 330,973 535,951
Net assets
Investment in capital assets 2,519,480 1,592,031 4,111,511
Unrestricted (deficit) 2,790,378 (324,190) 2,466,188

Total net assets
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$ 5,309,858

$ 1,267,841

$ 6,577,699




CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Sylvan Glen Aquatic
Golf Course Center Total
Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 662,113 $ 466,500 $ 1,128,613
Rental
Golf course 183,183 - 183,183
Restaurant 87,720 - 87,720
Miscellaneous income 91,200 37,185 128,385
Total operating revenues 1,024,216 503,685 1,527,901
Operating expenses
Operations and maintenance 875,835 402,079 1,277,914
Depreciation 145,585 164,102 309,687
Total operating expenses 1,021,420 566,181 1,587,601
Operating income (loss) 2,796 (62,496) (59,700)
Nonoperating revenues
Investment earnings 11,500 - 11,500
Change in net assets 14,296 (62,496) (48,200)
Net assets, beginning of year 5,295,562 1,330,337 6,625,899
Net assets, end of year $ 5,309,858 $ 1,267,841 $ 6,577,699
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to employees
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments for interfund services

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows used by capital and related financing activities
Purchase of capital assets

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of investments
Investment income

Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by operating activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Other liabilities

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities
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Sylvan Glen Aquatic

Golf Course Center Total
$ 1,026,115 $ 502,190 $ 1,528,305
(272,597) (255,092) (527,689)
(538,287) (186,967) (725,254)
(12,625) (22,382) (35,007)
202,606 37,749 240,355
(47,403) (37,749) (85,152)
420,780 - 420,780
11,578 - 11,578
432,358 - 432,358
587,561 - 587,561
1,218,709 - 1,218,709
$ 1,806,270 $ - $ 1,806,270
$ 2,796 § (62,496) $ (59,700)
145,585 164,102 309,687
1,899 (1,495) 404
(13,716) - (13,716)
(13,891) - (13,891)
(48,859) (10,138) (58,997)
- (52,224) (52,224)
128,792 - 128,792
199,810 100,245 300,055
$ 202,606 8 37,749 $ 240355




CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011
Compensated  Unemployment Custodial
Absences Compensation Services
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,846,115 $ 197,534 $ 264,032
Accounts receivable - - -
Inventory - - B
Total current assets 4,846,115 197,534 264,032
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets not being depreciated - - -
Capital assets being depreciated
net of accumulated depreciation - - -
Total capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation - - -
Total assets 4,846,115 197,534 264,032
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable B 20,802 4,391
Compensated absences 2,025,941 - -
Total current liabilities 2,025,941 20,802 4,391
Noncurrent liabilities
Compensated absences 1,813,373 - -
Total liabilities 3,839,314 20,802 4,391
Net assets
Investment in capital assets - - -
Unrestricted 1,006,801 176,732 259,641
Total net assets $ 1,006,801 $ 176,732 $ 259,641
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011
Information Motor Worker's
Technology Equipment Compensation Total
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,336,158 $ 5,976,051 $ 2,397,956 $ 15,017,846
Accounts receivable 30,762 60,185 - 90,947
Inventory - 350,583 - 350,583
Total current assets 1,366,920 6,386,819 2,397,956 15,459,376
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets not being depreciated e 10,248 - 10,248
Capital assets being depreciated
net of accumulated depreciation 438,470 2,680,615 - 3,119,085
Total capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation 438,470 2,690,863 - 3,129,333
Total assets 1,805,390 9,077,682 2,397,956 18,588,709
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 7,619 174,092 - 206,904
Compensated absences - - - 2,025,941
Total current liabilities 7,619 174,092 - 2,232,845
Noncurrent liabilities
Compensated absences - - - 1,813,373
Total liabilities 7,619 174,092 - 4,046,218
Net assets
Investment in capital assets 438,470 2,690,863 - 3,129,333
Unrestricted 1,359,301 6,212,727 2,397,956 11,413,158

Total net assets

$ 1,797,771

$ 8,903,590

$ 2,397,956

$ 14,542,491
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Operating revenues
Charges for services
Equipment rental
Building rental
Other
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses
Cost of services
Motor vehicle and garage expenses
Administration
Operations
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Nonoperating revenues
Investment earnings
Gain on sale of capital assets
Total nonoperating revenues
Income (loss) before transfers
Transfers in
Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Compensated  Unemployment Custodial
Absences Compensation Services
$ 4,117,038 $ - $1,137,961

- 156,425 -
4,117,038 156,425 1,137,961
4,072,417 213,303 1,215,097
4,072,417 213,303 1,215,097

44,621 (56,878) (77,136)
36,266 1,976 1,625
36,266 1,976 1,625
80,887 (54,902) (75,511)
80,887 (54,902) (75,511)
925,914 231,634 335,152

$ 1,006,801 $ 176,732 $ 259,641
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Operating revenues
Charges for services
Equipment rental
Building rental
Other
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses
Cost of services
Motor vehicle and garage expenses
Administration
Operations
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Nonoperating revenues
Investment earnings
Gain on sale of capital assets
Total nonoperating revenues
Income (loss) before transfers
Transfers in
Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Information Motor Worker's

Technology _ Equipment  Compensation Total
$ 1,365,821 $ 79,528 § 324,758 § 7,025,106
- 2,924,654 - 2,924,654
- 152,708 - 152,708
- 450,783 79,537 686,745
1,365,821 3,607,673 404,295 10,789,213
1,332,036 - 205,789 7,038,642
- 736,735 - 736,735
- 2,300,172 - 2,300,172
62,983 875,867 - 938,850
1,395,019 3,912,774 205,789 11,014,399
(29,198) (305,101) 198,506 (225,186)
8,909 41,296 16,964 107,036
- 61,665 - 61,665
8,909 102,961 16,964 168,701
(20,289) (202,140) 215,470 (56,485)
34,905 - - 34,905
14,616 (202,140) 215,470 (21,580)
1,783,155 9,105,730 2,182,486 14,564,071
$ 1,797,771 $ 8,903,590 $ 2,397,956 8§ 14,542,491
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from interfund services

Cash payments to employees

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital

.

Transfers from other funds

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Purchase of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Net cash used by capital and
related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of investments
Investment income

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by operating activities

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable

Inventory

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities
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Compensated Unemployment Custodial
Absences Compensation Services
$ 4117321 $ 156,437 $ 1,137,977
(5,184,180) - (1,078,566)
- (218,975) (133,364)
(1,066,859) (62,538) (73,953)
1,532,344 67,298 87,705
36,266 1,976 1,625
1,568,610 69,274 89,330
501,751 6,736 15,377
4,344,364 190,798 248,655
$ 4,846,115 $ 197,534 $ 264,032
§ 44,621 $ (56,878) § (77.136)
283 12 16
- (5.672) 3,167
(1,111,763) - -
(1,111,480) (5,660) 3,183
$ (1,066,859) § (62,538) § (73,953)




CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Information Motor Worker's
Technology Equipment Compensation Total
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from interfund services $1,365,886 $ 3,607,944 $ 404,400 $ 10,789,965
Cash payments to employees (960,923) (1,471,408) - (8.695,077)
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (402,439) (1,565.877) (205,789) (2,526,444)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 2,524 570,659 198,611 (431,556)
Cash flows from noncapital
financing activities
Transfers from other funds 34,905 - - 34,905
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 34,905 - B 34,905
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Purchase of capital assets (34,905) (318,637) - (353,542)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - 61,665 - 61,665
Net cash used by capital and
related financing activities (34,905) (256,972) - (291,877)
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of investments 353,442 1,466,368 569,053 4,076,210
Investment income (21,853) 38,761 16,964 73,739
Net cash provided by investing activities 331,589 1,505,129 586,017 4,149,949
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 334,113 1,818,816 784,628 3,461,421
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,002,045 4,157,235 1,613,328 11,556,425
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $1,336,158 $5,976,051 $ 2,397,956 $ 15,017,846
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by operating activities
Operating income (loss) $ (29,198) § (305,101) § 198,506 $  (225,186)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 62,983 875,867 - 938,850
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 65 271 105 752
Inventory - (37,160) - (37,160)
Accounts payable - - - (2,505)
Accrued liabilities (31,326) 36,782 - (1,106,307)
Total adjustments 31,722 875,760 105 (206,370)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities S 2,524 $ 570,659 $ 198,611 § (431,556)
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest receivable
Investments
U.S. Government securities
Corporate bonds
Corporate equities, preferred
Corporate equities, common
Mutual funds
Municipal bonds

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Net assets

Held in trust for pension benefits

Held in trust for postemployment
healthcare benefits

Total net assets

Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds

Employees' Discretionary Retiree Total

Retirement Fire Incentive Health Care Pension
System Reserve Fund Trust Fund Trust Funds
$ 5,496,179 $ 34,140 § 2,492,089 $ 8,022,408
194,415 9,141 - 203,556
10,752,503 4,731,101 - 15,483,604
16,458,682 - - 16,458,682
1,932,390 - - 1,932,390
104,354,242 - - 104,354,242
38,470,515 910,580 22,311,217 61,692,312
3,241,336 - - 3,241,336
180,900,262 5,684,962 24,803,306 211,388,530
290 22,650 - 22,940
146,670,309 5,662,312 - 152,332,621
34,229,663 - 24,803,306 59,032,969
$ 180,899,972 $ 5,662,312 $ 24,803,306 $ 211,365,590
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN FUND NET ASSETS - FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Additions
Contributions
Employer contributions
Employee contributions

Total contributions

Investment income
Interest
Dividends
Net adjustment in fair value of investments

Total investment earnings
Total additions

Deductions
Benefits
Administrative expenses

Total deductions
Net increase in plan net assets

Net assets held in trust, beginning of year for
Pension benefits
Postemployment healthcare benefits

Total net assets held in trust,
beginning of year

Net assets held in trust, end of year for
Pension benefits
Postemployment healthcare benefits

Total net assets held in trust, end of year

Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds

Employees' Discretionary Retiree
Retirement Fire Incentive Health Care
System Reserve Fund Trust Fund Total
$§ 2,484,436 873,691 § 3,545,578 $ 6,903,705
1,285,812 - - 1,285,812
3,770,248 873,691 3,545,578 8,189,517
1,792,008 225,623 13,304 2,030,935
2,752,363 - 363,105 3,115,468
32,406,285 236,971 3,716,555 36,359,811
36,950,656 462,594 4,092,964 41,506,214
40,720,904 1,336,285 7,638,542 49,695,731
11,300,869 660,014 - 11,960,883
99,848 22,100 - 121,948
11,400,717 682,114 - 12,082,831
29,320,187 654,171 7,638,542 37,612,900
114,003,190 5,008,141 - 119,011,331
37,576,595 - 17,164,764 54,741,359
151,579,785 5,008,141 17,164,764 173,752,690
146,670,309 5,662,312 - 152,332,621
34,229,663 - 24,803,306 59,032,969
$ 180,899,972 5,662,312 $ 24,803,306 $ 211,365,590
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
' AGENCY FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Balance Balance
Beginning of End of
Year Additions Deductions Year
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,768,159 $ 206,439,279 $ (206,419,932) § 1,787,506
Investments 25,676 - (25,676) -
Taxes receivable 901,571 208,055,787 (208,011,448) 945,910
Interest receivable 4 - 4) -

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Performance deposits

Total liabilities

$ 2,095,410 § 414,495,066 $ (414,457,060)

$ 2,733,416

$ 6,450 $§ 193,138,574
2,688,960 529,035

$ (193,109,004)
(520,599)

$ 36,020
2,697,396

$ 2,695,410 $ 193,667,609 $ (193,629,603)

$ 2,733,416
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AND

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2011
Debt Net
Operating Service Total Adjustments Assets
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,211,907 $ 3,207,924 § 9419831 § - % 9419831
Receivables
Taxes receivable 91,945 91,945 91,945
Total assets $ 6,303,852 § 3,207,924 § 9,511,776 - 9,511,776
Liabilities
Interest payable $ - 8 - 8 - 165,365 165,365
Deferred revenue 91,946 - 91,946 (91,946) .
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year - - - 2,215,000 2,215,000
Due after one year - - - 19,815,000 19,815,000
Total liabilities 91,946 - 91,946 22,103,419 22,195,365
Fund balance
Restricted
Debt service 3,207,924 3,207,924 (3,207,924) -
Operations 6,211,906 - 6,211,906 (6,211,906) -
Total fund balances 6,211,906 3,207,924 9,419,830 (9,419,830) -
Total liabilities and fund balance § 6,303,852 § 3,207,924 § 9,511,776
Net (deficit)
Unrestricted (12,683,589) (12,683,589)

Total net deficit

-03 _

$ (12,683,589)

$ (12,683,589)




CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCES ON THE BALANCE SHEET
FOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO NET ASSETS OF
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES ON THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2011

Fund balances - total governmental funds b 9,419,830

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different
because:

Because the focus of governmental funds is on short-term financing, some assets will
not be available to pay for current-period expenditures. Those assets (such as certain
receivables) are offset by deferred revenues in the governmental funds, and thus are
not included in fund balance.

Add: deferred revenues 91,946

Certain liabilities, such as bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Deduct: accrued interest payable (165,365)
Deduct: bonds payable - current portion (2,215,000)
Deduct: bonds payable - long-term portion (19,815,000)
Net assets of governmental activities $ (12,683,589)
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DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND
GOVERNMENTAL FUND REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Revenues
Property taxes
Investment earnings

Total revenues

Expenditures/expenses
Economic development
Debt service:

Principal
Interest

Total expenditures/expenses

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources and
(uses)

Net change in fund balances/
net assets

Fund balance/net assets (deficit),
beginning of year

Fund balance/net assets (deficit),
end of year

Debt Net

Operating Service Total Adjustments Assets
§ 2,110,801 $ - $ 2,110,801 $ 13,877 $ 2,124,678
53,357 3,481 56,838 - 56,838
2,164,158 3,481 2,167,639 13,877 2,181,516
1,128,968 - 1,128,968 - 1,128,968
- 2,065,000 2,065,000 (2,065,000) -
- 1,080,122 1,080,122 (22,051) 1,058,071
1,128,968 3,145,122 4,274,090 (2,087,051) 2,187,039
1,035,190 (3,141,641) (2,106,451) 2,100,928 (5,523)
- 2,627,249 2,627,249 - 2,627,249
(2,627,249) - (2,627,249) - (2,627,249)
(2,627,249) 2,627,249 - - -
(1,592,059) (514,392) (2,106,451) 2,100,928 (5,523)
7,803,965 3,722,316 11,526,281 (24,204,347) (12,678,066)
$ 6,211,906 $ 3,207,924 $ 9,419,830 $ (22,103,419) S (12,683,589)
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $  (2,106,451)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds in the
period issued, but issuing bonds increases long-term liabilities in the statement of
net assets. Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net

assets.
Add: principal payments on long-term liabilities 2,065,000

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in the
funds.
Add: decrease in accrued interest expense 22,051

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ (5,523)
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FINANCING AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AND
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2011

Net
Operating  Adjustments Assets

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 255,139 $ - $ 255,139
Fund balance

Restricted $ 255,139 (255,139) -
Net assets

Unrestricted 255,139 255,139
Total net assets $ 255,139 $ 255,139
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FINANCING AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND
GOVERNMENTAL FUND REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Revenues
Property taxes
Investment earnings

Total revenues

Expenditures/expenses
Economic development

Net change in fund balances/net assets

Fund balance/net assets,
beginning of year

Fund balance/net assets,
end of year

- 08

Net

Operating  Adjustments Assets
$196,186 § - § 196,186
2,665 - 2,665
198,851 - 198,851
160,004 - 160,004
38,847 - 38,847
216,292 - 216,292
$255139 § - § 255,139




CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AND
GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET

Assets
Cash

Fund balance
Restricted

Net Assets
Unrestricted

Total net assets

JUNE 30, 2011
Statement
of

Operating Adjustments Net Assets
$ 790,069 $ - § 790,069
$ 790,069 (790,069) -
790,069 790,069
$ 790,069 $ 790,069
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND
GOVERNMENTAL FUND REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Statement
of
Operating  Adjustments Activities
Revenues
Property taxes $ 4,567 $ - $ 4,567
Investment earnings 5,867 - 5,867
Total revenues 10,434 - 10,434
Expenditures/expenses
Community and economic development 9,211 - 9,211
Net change in fund balance/net assets 1,223 - 1,223
Fund balance/net assets, beginning of year 788,846 - 788,846
Fund balance/net assets, end of year $ 790,069 3 - $ 790,069
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

STATISTICAL SECTION
JUNE 30, 2011

This part of the City of Troy's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements,
note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the City's overall
financial health.

Contents Page

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand
how the City's financial performance and well-being have changed over
time. 101

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's
most significant local revenue source, the property tax. 107

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's
ability to issue additional debt in the future. 111

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help
the reader understand the environment within which the City's financial
activities take place. 117

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the
reader understand how the information in the City's financial report
relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs. 119

Continuing Disclosure
Information contained herein complies with Rule 15¢2-12, a federal regulation
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission, designed to improve
disclosure practices in the municipal bond market. 125

Sources:
Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. The City implemented
GASB Statement 34 in the fiscal year ended 6/30/03; schedules presenting
government-wide information include information beginning in that year.



- 101 -

ELLPPOS6ES THELL606ES 6LLI96'I8E §  0SY'OTI'BLES 961 68LOLE § IOV EVECLE §  ILS6VSLYE § 98000290V $  IP1965FIE $ S1085€ JoU JuewuaA0F Arewud [e10],
0Z9°18t'€8 PP FT6 9L T69°0F1°SL 00T'0£T'8L LOF'9SS 9L 0£L'PS6'9L 081°0£5°ZL C8L'S6S P11 880°6¥L'C6 pajoLnsan
8YT'E6T61 68Z'€67°9C 106°P0L 1€ YZ9'TSS e ELTBIT'PE 8E0°LI0EE 9¥6'LTT0S T66'911°6 60L°111°9¢ PRIOLISIY

S06'69T°T6TS  019°6SL'LRT §  989'SII'GLT S  909'LEE'SOT S  OIS'EIL'6ST § €69 1LETOT §  SHLIGLPCC $  60£°L069IT §  vHE'SELTRT § 193p Paje[21 JO 19U ‘sjasse [enided ul parsaau]
JUSWILISAOS AT

EL§°699T918 9L9°9L6'6S1 § SHO'GI0'9ST S 0TE6YI'PSI S €C8C906k] $  OZOEPO'SYl §  £L8'180°CP1 §  LPSEVE 1Pl S SSIZPIOVI $ Sjasse Jau sanAnoe adAy-ssauisng (210,
6LS'TS0'SY 9SL'O¥0 ey VLY 8¥6' b TTEBST O 0¥ TrI'Ey W'y 8P1'9E0°0F SET'OPT'EE £P9°1£9°€E paosaIun
= - = = = : - SO¥90E°L 9654099 PR1OLGSIY

P66TIOLITS  0T6'6T6'91T S  ILSOLOTIIL S  866'688°L0T §  LIV0T6'SOL §  SELTTOTOI §  STL'SPOTOL §  LOO'L6L'00T §  O6'S06'66 $ 199p Paiefad JO jou ‘sjasse [elded ur pajsaau]
sanianoe adA3-ssoutsng

00TOLETETS 999°000T1ETS YETTY6'STLS OIIIL6ECC S ELEITEITC S IPPO0ELIT $  866L9v'S0Z S 65S9LT 661 $ 9S6'ESH'PLI § SIOSSE JOU SANIANDE [BIUIWWIAA0S [BJO],
190°621'8€ L8Y'LLY'EE 817°Z61°0€ 8L8'0L6'1E 100°%1¥°EE 8PP EEC PE TEO'P6YTE 059°65¢'18 SPYLIT'TY pajoLnsaIuny
8PTE6T61 68T°€67'9Z 106'F0L'1E ¥T9'TES Ve ELTHIT'¥E 8E0°LID'EE 96°LTT0S L8S018'] E11°L0S°6T PalaLsay

116'9S9°PL1 S 069°6T8'0L1 §  SIUSHO'POI $  S09°LPP'LST §  660°E6L°EST §  SS6'6VL'6ST $  0T09PLTTI $  TOSOII'OIL §  86£°678'78 $ 193p pajejai Jo Jou ‘sjasse |ended up pajsaau]
SANIATIOR [BJUSLILIDAOD)

Tz 010z 5007 8002 00T 5007 5002 $00Z £00C
0€ dunf papug I8} [€dsig

(Bununoooy jo siseg |eniooy)
ININOJNOD A9 SLIASSY L3N

NVOIHOIW ‘AO¥L 40 ALID



~201-

9€1'z88'61  § IPS'LPPIZ S 66ETLLIZ $ 60880961 $ 66099761 S IESLLEBI S €eCZerlc  §  LI6OEIST  §  S196iciz § SanuaAal weidold saNIANIE [BUAWUIIACET [EI0],
769°568°0 008°065'8 SPE'E96'6 696°0L8'0 £EP'TSS0 9L LTS £26'69%°6 TEL'EOPEL LLVETLO1 suonnqmuod pue sjuesd [ejidey)
0S6°PLY 1 LOELSO'L 651°L96 £11°6L6 £69°7€6 £PT'6L0°1 vz 16% POL'LIS 169°5L9 suonnqiyuod pue sjuesd Suneado
0Lt'058°E SHIP8Y'y 950'86€'Y 0TS'LI9 80€°0pS" 690°8EE° Y 759080 079°180°t 7€5°656'C 20m[nd pue U0y
098'F 96L'y £66'9 015°€ SLTT SOL'YY 01%'1 LPO'PST £LE'90T uonejueg
0PZ969°1 9502161 P96'6LS 1 LIL'E19°] 786°LT6°1 PO 191 LLE0SEL PPO'LELT £88°CR6'T S3}10M d1[qng
8E8°T16'T 050°909°T L8Y'6LS'T SET'TEL'E 7TE'650°E 0bL'STH'T $99'769'C Z81'086°C 919°768°T Ajayes ouqng
9TILIO'E  § L8E'TOL'T  $§ S6E'LLTT 0§ SPLI6ET $  9Z0'skTT g pLO'IOI'T §  eEeITE $  866°STTl $  £h0'98¢°1 $ JUSWILLIAOF [RIBUD

18301A138 10 saF1ey)
SANUIAIL WEIFoag

BI989TL6  § LPL'09E'00L $ 08079SLPOI § €09'9€9°SOl  § CZeS'€0SZIl  § LOI'SPR60I S  PLKOOTO01 $  Z0SPIO68  § PPl cC8crs S sasuadxa Juawnaaos Aewud g0y,
0EE'0S6'ST ¢ 10£°006'WC  § 60EZ80ST _§  L8VTIL9T  § SehPILLZ _ § T0666697 S 18S00LST  § #099652C  § 8EE98L0c S sasuadxa sanianoe adfy-ssauisng [eio,
919°€Z5"] rPTTE91 9ERPEO’( $T9'PT9°1 £65°€89°1 PLROEL] 1ZL 1L 9L0"LY - 251009 Jj0n e Alenjoueg
0Tr'120'1 0Z1°L80°1 19€°860°1 200111 12#'580°1 611°601°1 1#0'901°1 LEE'LOT1 £P6'L6T'1 281000 J]00) U0 URA|LS
£L8°69¢ £PE 198 6'L6S £59°T65 9€7°389 LER'RED 960°195 STI'PpS £TH L8P 191uad onenby
ZEE'00F'01 910°SHI'6 01°910'6 £88°9L5'6 LPT'S0L6 8F0'789°6 1$9°086'% 6£0°891°01 19¢'8LL'S Iamas Aiejueg
680°6EY'TL  §  BLSPLY'TI  $  BOLWOL'TL  §  S8TBOS'El  §  SLE'ISEEl  §  PTOGESEl  §  TRELOC'El  $  LTODEYOL S 11STITOl § orem
santanoe adAy-ssaursng
S8TBIETIL § OvPOP'SL § ILL'GL9'6L § OII'VI68L  $ L6EGSESS S SOCBYSC8  $  C65E6F08 S  S68LIFO0 S O0886CEL S sasuadxa SANIANIE |RUSWIWIAAOS [BIO]
96£°599 $8F°059 9SHOEF 1 OLP'TLS'L 098°819°1 $08'089'1 61+'TTT'E 61L01' Y 8TOEEL'E 199p uua-Fuo| uo jsaauy
0Z€'598'6 TT6'ELS'TL 9RTTLEYI 6E8'60Z°F1 £1£°681°S1 S1EPT6SI LLO'650°91 881'6LS'E1 816'vLT'TI a1ny[nd pue UONEAINFY
626'0£0°1 180°09%°1 L69'8E8°( LTI'E10'T LSE'6PL 78L'850°C SPR'61S L10°109 1¥1'$29 1wawdoaAap J1Wo0d2 pue Aunuiuo))
0EE0LLY 0L Y66'E 8€9°196°¢ Ir8'e68’c 999'6Z¢"y £60°L9E'Y CEO'EER'Y 10Z°CEr'y OF1'861°Y uonejues
LOLTI8 YL L16000°61 PEE6IRST £19°b90°91 6LEF980T 8TRTLESI 68T°SLY 0L 8TL VLTI 86¢'996°C1 Sy10Mm d1jqng
101°9LL°0E 202°00€°1€ Pr6L6S TE £8L°05H 1€ 98T'9E'0E TPS'E0L'8T ISE9EL'LT LD PEFEL £9F°L8O'CT fayes ongng
SPS'LSO0L  §  BTSORPOL  § 96€°€60°01 §  THFGIL'G § 9€S'109'T1  $  L6S'WELII  §  6LS'LPO'TI S SPE'SSYEl & SIOPILIL § JUDWILLIBACS [EIDUAD)
IS2NIALOE |BUSLLULLIIADD
sasuadxy
10T 0102 6002 800Z 00T 5007 5002 00T €002

(€ dUnf papug 183X [83S1

(Bununoooy jo siseq |eniooy)
S13SSV L3N NI SFONVYHOD

NVOIHOIN ‘AO¥L 40 ALID



-€01-

1£F°LO0' § FILTIZL  § 6ESETIF §  PECIEL'L $ (p9TFS6'1) § (£80°€1C) $§  ETEL09'T § SPEETTST  § 068800711  §
L6Y'889°T RTPS1T STL'698°1 L6t'980°C €08°610' LP1196'T LOT'P8L 79871071 1¥0°L09°T
PES'SLEL $  TEK'SS0'S $§  PIS'ESTT 0§ LELPKOT § (Lo0'vLe's)  § (0€TWLT'E)  §  9sI'gEw'l § €8S'TTOPT  §  6¥BIOM'S $
LITLELTS § 9L6'9€6'8S § S6L'SIS09 § [99°0ST€9  § OLL'SZ8'19 S LLBOBIZ9 S F6F19T10 §  FISG0899 & O08LZ2020  §
(6SP°LOT) § (19e'vel) §  609°09¢ §  £79°067°1 $  S8POLOT S  €LEPS6 §  8L6OLT $  09Z°96¢'1 $  ObLISS 1 g
(0z0'z6P) (091°L29) (00Z'v0L) (0r1°Z89) (0p0°cH9) (005'85L) (or1°0£8) - (00Z'058)
: 008y : - T : - 95p°0£1°1 €ES'TSL'T
195'p8E 869°L8F £61°790°1 188°€96'1 £ETH01°T 099°0£6°1 LES'016 FOL S9E £1+°6¥9
2 $ 10 $ 919 $ 788wl $  TeTSIT § fleue §  195°961 g sn gL s $
989°p8'ZS  § LECTILO'6S § 981°SSI09  §  ppO09619 S 16L6PI09  § F0SO6LI0  § OISPS600 S  PSS60ESY9 S OPOTILYO9 §
0Z0°T6¥ 091°LZ9 00T'P0L 0F1°789 (096958°D) 008°85L 0r1°0€8 S 00Z'0S8
8E0°ETI PEIE91 LEOIEL 601°6L1 €95'811 SECPED 981°L01 £80°€90° SPS8ER
SE6LES STO'S8L 869°108°1 6LESTY'E 611385 LES'OEH'E LTI'805'T 797651 869°658°1
759°8 162°L0Z°1 1S1°€01 86E'LE £PSISLL S06'PT 06819 0 00¢°1
999°619°s 999°19°'S 666'C1€°9 REA'EEY'D 805°5£9'9 L9180 TLE'906'D 6TL101°L 996°819°L
SLE'LO09Y  §  190'€49°0S  §  LOLIKOIS  $  080°T00'IS  §  9IT'SSKOS  §  09S'L6ber  §  10S'0LS'0S S OEK'S8O%S §  IEI'ZOL'6h S
(96L°699'8%) § (Z9TbZL'15) § (95TZ6€9S) § (eerszsss) $ (0POOSL'E9) S (096660 29) § (1LL'PSO8S) § (698'18S'14)  § (968°E10°1S) §
95E'96L'T £79°882°C 9L1'608°] PLE'GLE SIEEPET PLLOLE'L 681°L0S (868'767) S6TSSO'1
(Ter'9op’1s) 8 (s06'T10'S) § (TLE'106°LS) § (LOE'Sic'ss)  § (8SE°67199) § (beL'ocv'v9) & (09€191%6S) § (1L6'98T'1H) $ (161°690°78) &
TT8'86S'8y  §  SBY'OLO'SY  §  pISE9E8y §  OLL'LIL0S  §  C6LECL8F $ LOTPSELP  §  COCOFSLF S  CE9ZEpLiP S ST lLeth g
989'9bL'8T  § PP6'SSILT  §  STK1659C $ [9€TOSOE  §  E€SLLSK6T  §  9L9OL6ST S OLOPIZ9Z S 90L 10€'2 §  €£9°1p8IT §
19¢°12¢ 6£7'66T 0ST'sz0'l P6EEr9 6T8°TI0'T EPELTL 16¥°€€9 2 E
SLL'OVE L89°896 769'€T6 £05'$86 986'750'1 0ZO'ELY'T TE1°T96 061°18 :
912'vT0'1 761'821°1 LOP'SLIT 6L9LE] $68°sT1°l P10l PrL861°] 8E6'TPT'L PL8'S6T'1
$89°€0S 0LY 15T 1£9'081 Er'8Ey 11'zze 8THOLE STI'8LT 95Z°0LE SKT'LIY
SLI'LI6 ML 09'ZLE 01 T0T'0SL's £9L°T19'11 SIS 16T 11 LLEFT1°01 01'€79'6 £9Z°01L'6 IZI€L6'8
PLTOEI'YL S OIS'BIG'EL  §  EIILTTEL  §  065'P89'SI  §  LIFZSO'PI  §  99LG6S'SI S SOIBISEl  §  6S0°L6S0OI  §  €66SSITL S
1102 0102 6007 8007 L00T 9002 S00% F002 €007

OF dUNp Papuy JEIA [BISL]

yuawweaod ewud fejog,
satanoe adA-ssauisng
SOTIALIOR [BJUILLILIDAOCD
S)aSSY JaN ul aBuey)

awuaaod Lewnd gogp
samanoe adAy-ssauisng [ejo]
S1ajsuel]
SNOaUR|[A0SIjA]
sTulIes JuaUNSIAUL PUE JS21U|
swesdord oyoads 0] paldLISal JON GLIUOD 3 SIURID)
:santanoe adAy-ssauisng

saniAnoe [ejuaunA0d B0 ],
sIajsuel],
SNOAUB[|ISTY
SBUILED JUILSIALI PUE JSAIBYU]
sweifoid ol 1oads 0) pajoLISal 10U "qUIUND 3 SIUBID)
SanuaAal paleys-ajelg
saxe} Apadong
(SAIALDE [BIUIUILIDAOD)
SJOSSY JAN Ul SaFUBYD) 1)) PUE SINUIAIY [BIIUIL)

asuadxa 1ou uawwaaod Kewd [pjo],
sananoe addy-ssausng
SANIALOR [BIUSLILLIZAON)
anuaAdy/(asuadxiy) 1aN

sanuaaal werfosd yuaunwaaod Aewud jejo],
sanuasal werdosd sanianoe adAj-ssoursng |e1o],
suonnquUIueD pue sjueld endey
ASIN0OD JjoN) e Alenjoueg
351N0D J|0N) UID) UBAAG
191ua2 onjenby
1amas Aiejiueg
1218AL
183014128 10] safuey)
:sananoe adf-ssauisng

(panuguo))

(Bununoooy Jo siseq |entooy)

S13SSV 13N NI SIONVHO

NVOIHOIN ‘AOYL 40 ALID



-$01 -

8rTE6T 61 6876792 106'F0L 1€ ¥T9'TSS PE ELTOII'PE S SEOLIOEE  §  9p6'LTTOS 16L°680°1S 6T0'9€6'€9 STS061°6F
2 ¥8L606'LI - - - ¥ = » T =
098°SHT'L 00t'68 2 * * % - N - -
889°LPOTI SO1°p6T'8 106F0L 1€ PE9'TSspE ELT6IIPE  §  BEOLIO'EE §  9p6'LTTOS 16L°680°1§ 6Z0'9E6'ED STS061'6Y
SE1'69p'LT 988" 1PL'ET LY VIELL TOLTEY'ET LBS'SO8'YT  §  608'868'97  §  Z6I'LOR'EE SSL'TSH'0T 0£L°9ZH'1Z 601°096'12
899°65€'CI 1LzzeLol 78606902 LST'S10'ET S65°691°T 999°082'9T #0T'860°€C 91965891 £08°106°L1 SEI'9LE'8]
000°€S6'S S68°ILIG - 2 i " = z = &
1E1°019°E 000°00%'€ * = - - - : 2 2
LET'R0S"T 2 = 2 = = i & - .
6I1'vE0'y 0ZL Lyt PrEET9 SOs°LI9 766669 B T ) $  836'80L 6E1°L6S'C LT6'PES'E PLE'ERE'E
T10Z 0107 6007 8007 L0027 5007 S00T F00T €007 7007

€ Junp papuy J8aj [BISI] 100

(Bununoooy Jo sisegq |enJooy paipo)

SHV3A TvOSId NIL LSV
SANN4 TYLNIWNHEIAOD ‘STONVIVE ANNS

NVOIHOIN ‘AO¥L 40 ALID

Spuny |ejuatuiiaacd Jauo |[e [e10]
paudissy
Panuoy
pajoLsay

SpUn,| [BJUIWILIZACE) IO [V

puny jerouad jejo]
paudisseup)
paugissy
paRIwwosy
paroLsay
a[qepuads-uop

puny |e1auan



-S0T1 -

%19 %8S %€°C %6y %€ %I'S %E£'6 %I %111 %T61 samjipuadxa endesuou
Jo eBejusnsad e sB 9014105 193(T
(TLL'OLT'E) (zoz've6't) & (61€°88'%) § (biv'6eL) £ (986'0£6) $  (gsp'901'0) ¢ ses'epZl 8 (C1T0ZEEL) §  919'E90'FI (Z6l'6LE's) 8 s90uR[Eq pury Ul 9BURYD 1IN
£T1°LS9 SI1t'L9s § _60I'9¢6 §  Z0T'EES § le6z'elz?)  §  188whL'l  § STIS06 § - $  _00TSL0lp LEU'E96'PE  § (sasm) saaumos Suausuy saie [EjoL
(sz1'zie's) (£65°$€6'6) (16s'zrr'on) (£60°8L8°11) (L7691 (0e8°800'T1) (161°669°S1) (616'98L°22) (€ov'19L'T (6p1°1$8°81) Mo swgsuel]
ovT'eLT'e PSP 01 91199011 €ET09T'ZL 18£'696¢1 0SE'L9L'T1 1EE°625'91 616°90L'TT £99'119°€T 6£0°€T9'61 UIf SISUBL]
6E9'LYG . = - = - s - - % Q0UENSS] 1G3a(] U WNiLL]
(P00°616°6) (osef19e L) - (ov8'109'€) " s - - - * sjuade A01259 0} sjuowiey
£LE'19 . SOTEL Z06'LY 122'8pL 62606 SB6'PL 3 w - siesse [eided jo afes woy spasoig
000°011%6 SIS ITEIl  § 6181 §  00060SE S Op¥IY § 68018 g = £ = §  o00'sTToR T'isl've § 193p JO auenss]
(sasn)) seaanog Jupuenry PO

(S68'€€6'E) (L19'1ss'e) 8§ (gev'sis's)  §  (9o9'zer’l) §  €1€'988'1  §  (PEEISEL) §  €9pbHE $  (€1T0z8'ce) §  (p8S'110°LD) (6ZETHE'RY) § samypuadxa
(12pun) 1340 SINUIAIL JO $SIONT
185°£009L GPTISY'ER  §  96I'ELTM8  §  LESOTH'TB  §  PII'L6S'6L S COS'SSL'OR §  SZESSEES $  pSLEOM66 S 65079901 SYH'800°€T1 § samyipuada [e1o ],

GLEBPT'1 £69°SLE'| 695°19%'] 6SL 1LY 014°6£9°1 9S8'TOL' 01T'oPT'E 61L0IY'F BTOEEL'E SEL'6TTE saflieya 1910 pur |satau]

985'96¢'T TO9'FOE'T 60£'572'2 967'896'1 LSE'LIGT TIL9EL'L $56'601'€ 0057L8'T1 P8T180°Y 09F'685°6 |ediauig
ANAIRE 19200
PREFTY SOI'Z90°LL LLEOLILL 0EL'TTE'TL 99L'988°11 LEB'PO6'81 FES'I6L Y] 9L8'P61'TT 029°108'7r L10'660°95 Aepno [eide)
165°L90'6 PIPIELTI EIF0E8'EL LOT'1EF'P1 GEL'TIF'EL TTL'OLE'EL 09$'€9T'€1 058'¥ZE L1 PSL'E68' 11 6ILLBT01 AIMYND PUE UOHEDLINY
008°8¢1 TTSLTI 91Z's61 186'<11 160°611 SLT1I0T 168"vLY THTESS 99€'9L8 4817629 “A3(] AILOUOI % AJmunne))
SEA'601'Y £00'966'E F6L 196E LB T68'E T96'8T8'Y £60°L9E'F 1$8°2Eb'y 10T'TEr'y 0F1°861'p SLT1L'E uonEiuEs
IB6'C9TT PO EROT FII'SZST SPE'9LY'T 91.'9L9'T TLL'SER'T £pO'0BL'T £50'005°€ 098'80L'E 88+'808'E SO 2NqNd SO
EPS6RT'Y TILPPE' 8LE'LBY'S 8PL009'S 991'pSL'y PRI'SSL'Y 0LEPLO'S 866'tH6'E PS1'CT8'e 0T8ITE'E SIaaNg pue speoy
0 668'6T 8¥9°T06'0€ LIT'THO'IE L9909 0E 806'SLS'6T SLTELE'LT PEO'E0T LT BLT'EIE'9T 9SE°6TT ST 6S0°1TLPT Kajes aygng
16L'TET'8 PIETISE S 6PLL9I'6 § LSLUIS16 § 66EBIIG §  SLO'TOO6  $  L89'8L6'S S SECUCYS  §  LLPLITS clT'e0s’t ¢ 1UaUNUAA0E [RIdUAL)
saangipuadxy
985°690°ZL TEU6686L T 8OLCCYl8 §  I98'E66'08 S LTY'ESS'08 §  SOPPO6SL S 8RE'00LE8 S IPSERSSR S 6ov059°08 919'999'8L IR [BI0L,
SLO°L96'1 10L°LpE"S £P6'666'T LLOPTE'] 0p89H0°T 650°100°1 18L°£18'2 TI§'Ler's 208'86L'p 109°666'€ LYY
66801 £LO'ERD 790'265°1 98F°T8L'T $56'THE'S TLY'LPE'T L9O'EITT I8RO 66€'199'1 $95°L89'T LU0} WRUNSAAU]
SOLLLT'L 6TL'9TT'1 191'750°1 P8LERY L 9RTEHT1 £LE'P66 LTEEL6 0SZ'096 £E8°068 PLILLL siajio) pue sauiy
BEL'SEE'L £IL°151'8 SPG'T8LL S16%601°8 081'8EE'8 ££0'S68'L 1€L°p65°8 096°01€'9 SIT'0LE'S BES'LIYE 52010425 Joj safliey?)
60L'6E0° B6E'806 TITssr 850°85L £28'59L SOL'168 #S1'591 SIH1PT 0S¥yl 89T'651 [€00] - [EjusUUAAOT )]
SSEPOS 01 P6TPoF 01 118'SpE' 11 9TH'066°11 GOT'SORT1 LEFELOTT 0SLYP6'TI £TE'6LE 61 0E0'OF6'S1 OPE'GOILL NS - [EIUDUNLAA0T L]
EEYILIT POE'SRI'E P1E'PE8'Y FTE'6LT'T §96' 155 99E°196 069'826'T 609's 1y 190°LEr 0IE'69S [BI9P2] - [BJUSURLIIAOTISI]
8PL6ST | 60811 161°L€2°1 SEOEGE] 8S6° 160" 268°299°1 SEP'LO'L 866791 £00'60H' 1 £E1°2TEl spunad pue 5asuddI]
£LO'ZRO'OY 1$6'828'05  §  6TI'TEO'IS §  9SL0LT'IS § 1169690 §  ILILLS'6F §  LETSSH'IS §  OlI6TL6P S 965Seber 601°0ZL'Ly  § saxe Apadoig
sanuasay

T10T (014 6002 8002 100z 9002 S00Z FO0Z 00T T00T

(€ Unf papuy JB3A [EISI 10,

(Bununoooy Jo sisegq [enJody palipo)
SHVIA TVOSId NIL LSV
SANN4 TVLININNYIAOD ‘STONVYIVE ANNL NI SIONVHO

NVOIHOIN ‘AO¥L 40 ALID



- 901 -

€L9°780°9% 668°9€€°T EPELET'L €LS'LSOY 858°05S°CE 110¢
155°878°0S 10Z°L09°T T06°LS6'L T€6°006°¢ 915°79¢'9¢ 0102
6Z1°T60°1S 297°€59°C 966°98¢°] 9St p96 e SSH'L8P O 6002
898°0LT'1S 098°€$9°C 91£°68¢E'8 6SL'€9S°C 178°L99°9¢ 8002
116°969°0S L88°19S°C LY6°00T°8 IvTYSTY 9€8°6L9°SE L00T
08TLL8 6V 8€0°98+°C LYL1%0'8 PSI0ZI'Y TET'6TTSE 9002
9¥0'99L LYy SIL'8IYT 961°9€0°6 81L010't rIH00€'C€E S00T
91t 0L6 S 160°TIS'E 811°98S°L PIL'988°¢C L8E'S86°0€ #002
611°LTE SY 0S¥'0ILE PITLIYL LLT'008‘E 8LT'66£°0€ €002
VIL'SLL'SY TI0'8¥S’e $  660°90S°L §  LLO9E9EC 9Z5°$80°6¢ z00T
SIXE], NNARS [ende) asnyay [LAELES] (g aung
Kyradoag 199 papuy
IV 1830l [LAELIETSY IBI X [BISI]

Spun [BJUSWUIIA0L)

SHV3IA TvOSId NIL LSV
404dN0OS A8 INNIATY

XYL TVINIWNEIAOO TVHINID

NVOIHOIN ‘AOYL 40 ALID



- LOT -

%1Z°0 002°26 %6L°66 8L6'6SLCR 98¢°C60°1 %6T°L6 765 v99°Th 6LITSS €t 1102
%¥T0 08L9T11 2%9L°66 TH8'SS1°8Y 058°99L %L1'86 T66°88€°LY 869°CLT 8t 010T
%ST0 122°0T1 2%00°66 1LS 161°8Y LZO'TLL %TP L6 PrSOTY LY 02Z'9L9°8Y 6002
%2Z0 61 L0 %26'66 €6T°LTY8Y 8€8LEOT %8L'L6 SSH68S° LY L88°L99°8Y 800¢
%ET 0 €LL'80T %LL 66 ¥19°67T°8% Z00°€T6 %L8 L6 T19°90¢°LY TIY'8EE sy L002
%¥1'0 ¥6£°59 %b 66 8LT1S9°0¥ T6L9TL %68°L6 98%'vZ6°SH 66L°E16°9F 9007
%L¥'0 LEV'PIT %€5$°66 £86°1SH°St LTSLEY %E1°86 9SH' P18 Ph 0T+ 999°SH $00T
%L9°0 876°96C 26966 9S0°CI 1 vr ELY'TLY %L1'86 €86°0PF EY 016°1ST'vr $00T
%ET'1 CIT'16Y %TT 66 SS896T ey £T€°78S %88'L6 TESYLS TY 9PI°L6Y EY €002
%bL0 1#9°80¢ § %E£9'66 968°8Y9° Iy $ 98%'T€9  § %Z1'86 01%910°1Y $ 88L°CO8° Ty § z00T

Aaag xe saxXe ], AAdT xeR aNeq oL SU0nMN0) [IEIRET| (19 Suo0NIAI0D AAd] 0€ 2unp

[e10] 0], juanburpag [ejo] o], suon||o) Xej] SaXe |, Xej, Xe| popuy aeax
SaXE ], Suipugysing SuUoNIINI0) XEB], [810], yuanbuippq juaaIny) jo ju.LINY) [ejo], [easig

juanbuipaq jo XB] [B)O] JO a8vjuadIag
Eria]IERRER adejuadaag

SHV3A TVOSId N3L 1SV
SNOILOITIOO ANV S3IATT XVL ALHId0Hd

NVOIHOIWN ‘AO¥.L 40 ALID



- 801 -

a1qeanddy 10N -
peRISalWoy-uoN - HN
pedIsaWoy - 4

ey 010 009 6570 LEE 8¢°1 S9¥ ELTT 0r'6 050 L8O €51 059 HN 1102
2495 01'o 009 650 LE'E 8S°1 SOy L6 0r'e 050 L8O £5°1 059 H 1102
L9Ly 010 009 6570 LE'E 8¢l Sov 01°zZe 8C6 050 SLO €51 059 HN 010T
PEYE oro 009 6570 LEE 8S°1 S9¥ LL'8 876 050 SLO €571 059 H 0102
LO'LY 01°0 009 650 LE'E 8¢1 0 0ree 876 0$°0 89°0 09°1 059 HN 6002
6T vt 0ro 009 650 LE'E 851 o'y TL'8 876 050 89°0 09°1 059 H 600T
09°L¥ * 009 6570 LEE 861 S9Y e1'ee 876 050 89°0 09°1 059 HN 800¢
68'pE * 00'9 650 LEE 8¢°1 $9'¥ e 806 05°0 89°0 091 089 H 800¢
SLLY * 00'9 6570 LEE 861 9y €1'ee &6 050 £€8°0 09°1 059 HN L00T
or'cE * 009 650 LE'E 861 9y L86 Ve 050 £8°0 091 0s9 H L00T
8L'LY * 009 09°0 LEE 861 SOt E1'ee ste 050 €80 9l 059 HN 9002
(AR 93 * 00’9 09°0 LE'E 81 9t L86 t'6 0s0 £8°0 [A*a | 059 H 9002
08'Ly * 009 09°0 8¢t 65’1 SOy £1'ee S¥'o 0s0 ER'0 L8'1 sT9 HN 00T
P8¢t * 009 09°0 3¢L'E 09°1 o'y 9101 st'e 0s0 £R0 L8] ST9 H 00T
PRy * 00°s 090 (1] 091 9y y1I'1Z Sv'6 SLO €870 o1 cc9 HN $00T
190043 % 00° 090 otr'e 09'1 SOt £r'6 c¥'6 SLO £8°0 w91 §T9 H #0027
L8OF % 009 09°0 we 19'1 9t PIIT S¥6 SLO £8°0 w91 sTo HN €002
9% cE * 009 090 e 19°1 SOy eL'6 S¥e SL0 £8°0 o1 §T'9 H £00Z
£9°0F * 009 0 9t 09°1 o'y erie 87’6 SLO £8°0 $9'1 g9 HN 2002
9¢°ce * 009 b (4] 9v'E § 091 §  #9¥ $ 90701 $ 86 SLO £8°0 by So'l $ §T9 $ H zooz
[e10] 007 uoneInpy LIVIAS LsIq EFETTe ) Ajuno) 1L8I(Q el 199Qq asnjay [ende) JB12UN) 0€ dunp
aeIg [GDITRIN Ajunwwo)) puepjeQ [ooydg foag yo 531D papuy dva X
djeIpauLIdu] Auno) Aoxy [eas1y
puepieQ

sjuawniason) SuiddepdaQ

(NOILYNTVA A3SSISSY 40 000°1$ ¥3d)
SHVY3IA TVOSId N3L 1SV
SLININWNHINOO ONIddVYTHIAO ANY LO3HId
S31VY XV1 ALd3d0dd

NVOIHOIN ‘AO¥L 40 ALID



- 601 -

1894 YOBD JO 15| £ 13qIa0a(] JO Se pauuuzlap st Auadosd a[qexe) Jo uonen[EA passasse pue ajqexe) alp

‘maue wdaq pinoa ssaooxd Suidded ay) uayy pue ‘(sainges ay) Aq paugap se)
diyssaumo Jo 1ajsuen & Fulmo[|o) Jeak ay) 10§ [enba aq 0 A1am INJEA PASSASSE PUE anjea 2[qeXEe] Ju Jeuy) pajepuew osje [esodold siyL

‘uonongsued mau Aue snjd ($saf st I2A3YDIYM)
%S 10 aje1 uoneyul ayy £q paidnnui *anjea ur sasso] Aue snuiw ‘anjea ajqexe; sieak snotaaud ayy Suryey 4q pare[nolea st anfea padden

‘anjea paddes 10 9N|EA PISSISSE JO J2SS3] A} SE PIUYAP SI 2N[BA |QEXE] PAIAI] MOU 21 (SOXE]) 3)ES aFeqiwu yorym uodn Junowte i s1 anjea 2jqexE],

“Auadoad e o anjea 1318w A1) JO 9406 1e sutewas pue ‘[esodold ai) Aq paSueyoun sem anjea passassy (anjea paddes pue anjea ajqexe;)
sasodind juawssasse pue xe} J0j sou0Taied mou 0my paeaid |esodoid SILL "p661 Ul 19913 %00] ‘UeBmII JO suaznio ay Aq passed se ‘v, [esodoug

“Ajjenuue pajepdn Apnys sajes UOW-Z| & SuISn PaIEMO[ED SI ON|BA PASSASSE Pajewnsa ay L 0N

spiooay Fuissassy Aot Jo A :a0anog

%86°L6 DRY'TIF'OPS'Y 6v°6 091°0SL'8bp Y D68 PBO PEE 0ZL'ROP' 19T 0TE°590°261"1 0ET'IE1'1€9'C ZI0TI0E9 1T10T/10/L 010Z/1821
%01 L6 CIEBIS'BR6'Y oF'e CIDEI9'EPE'Y 0EL'066'LOY 069°0LF 6EY LES661°L0T'1 SSO'TSH'ELT 110T/0£9 0T0Z/10/L 600T/1€/T1
%I15't6 6ET'688'8ER'S 876 GEO'GLLGSH'S 0ET001'SFP OFESIT'LOS [LE'LLE'OLE"L SH6'980'FEL'E O102/0£/9 600T/10/L 800T/1E/TT
%EE'68 0S0'F60°LTTO 876 010°965'795's 008°TSS'LSY D81°001°605 0TS'8I1'66E"1 018°¥T8'961'E 600T/0£/9 800T/10/L LO0Z/1ET1
%P 98 0I8'659°TTH'9 876 LEP'O1S'0SE'S 0S9°E1T +oF 0T6'F0S0LS 0S8'10T'88E"1 L10'965'L81'E 800T/0£9 LOOT/TOL 200T/1€/T1
%¥PT T8 0SLP08'809'0 £r'6 ThP'SEO'SER'S 0S6'FLB 6LY 0L9'v16°T0S OZU'SLI'OLE'L TOL0LO'9LO'E LOOT/0E/9 900T/10/L co0zNetl
%L9°08 0£E'PLO'9ZS'O St'6 0SS ISEPIT'S 0L9'L6P E0S 0ST'PLE' LoV 0P PS6"69E" [ 065°ST6'T68°T 900T/0L/9 S00T/10/L 00T/ 18/T1
%6E°08 CLOTTTLEE'D 5’6 ETTRSL'PO0'S €TF'E60'9ES 0LET0T 06V 068'SHS 6TE 1 0PS'916'8EL'T S00T/0E/9 FOOT/10/L £00Z/1E/T1
%S08 95T'PR0'8R1°0 SP'6 LEF'E9T'BLE'Y 969°9ET ¥ES 0I0'TLL LY 080°€L8'EEE"] 1S9°18E°E65'T 00T/0£/9 £00Z/10/L oozt
%E9'18 B6E'L6I'CSH'S 56 BFOOFY 198 8ES'HO6'619 096°'61€ €8F 080°65F'SLE'L OLO'L68'TSK'T £00Z/0£/9 To0T/10/L 1002/'18/T1
%06'C8 TP6'E9STS9'E % 8’6 TP6'0ST'9R9'Y  § T1T'TeS 6k L] DSE' 16F CSh g 018'0LS"6ET'L g 0LS'9T91PE'T & T00T/0E/9 100T/10/L 000T/1E/T1

e P Y ange A aey anjey Aadoag Ayradosg Kaadoag Kyaadoag papusy aeq aeq

Jo wa-_._ou?nﬂ_m passassy XE | IOQEXE | B30, |euosiag e snpuj _E_UMMEEGU Tenuapisyy EL Y .ﬁaﬂ...— JUIWSSISSY

Ese e -uahmﬁm _RGW—E

RIUL LA €301,

SHVIA TvOSI4d N3L LSV
Ald3d0Odd 40 INTVA I31gVvXV.L
ANV 3INIVA d3SS3SSY

NVOIHOIN ‘AO¥L 40 ALID



0Ll -

‘sieaAk yoq ut Jeadde SxpIf 9 paunjaapi] .

AL AN 1woL TIOCI9'ErS'y § Th6°0ST°989°y  § AL O mo],
AL AND Jo % w0, %$9'9 %bS'6 A/L A1 30 % [e10 ],
wy dogy [eyoy, 0E0°P6I°TIE  § 0SL°E98'obr  § uw | doJ, &0,
BOLIDWY JO Yueg %150 01 09" LoV VT %09°0 0l 096'PLT'ST “d"T 2210 PRIFYS
oossy Jaaeag 319 M 888 %S0 6 0E6°ZEE9T %T9°0 6 0LL°L90°6T 00 % 831y
[eD ueqin) %¥S'0 8 099°8¥£°97 %Z8°0 8 086°679°8¢ jueq seisderq
aoe|d Aos | -AaudsO %LS"0 L 09Z°18¢€°LT %68°0 L 086'69L 1 "1 Auadoig Auaqry
HoSIpA 10415q %LS"0 9 00L°LSS LT %560 9 0EE10€ v uosipq oHaq
ooe|d A01] JowaN %85°0 S 000°266°LT %660 5 060062 9 HEN N
[etnsnpuy Ko1, %85'0 14 06£'92£°8T %001 v 060°596°0% sonuadoad DM
TNPUREDUDIY [2YAN %Z9°0 € 0£1°008°62 %S11 £ 08%'568°cS T USPUT [2YAN
1B 1088y sawg %580 z 0TELOT 1Y %ST1 z 09S9LL']S U3Y0) S2GA0, [yt ]
UIY0)) SaqI0,] [aUDL] %0€°1 I 081°08L°29 $ %97’ I 015°7£6'8S $ YHOMIUD A 29 A[BD)

Jadedxe], anje Nuey ELTCEN ELTCEN Nuey anfeA Jiedxe],

qexe], a[qexe] qexe ], aqexe |,
1D woL jo AuD w0y yo
ESLAUERNEN | EYTATIERREY |

LT0Z/0€/9 papuy Jea X [edsiy

OOV SHVIA NIL ANV dVIA LNIHHND
SHIAVAXVL
TVdIONIdd N3L dO1L

NVOIHOIN ‘AO¥L 40 ALID

C00T/0€/9 PIpuy JedX [BISI



= LLL~

‘SJUDWIIEIS [BIOUBUL] 21} 0 SIJ0U AU} UT PUNoj 3 Ued 1qap Suipueisino s,A10) 2y Suipresaa sjielng 230N

Sr'sey TTLTl 000°00€°0T (XA %S0 8SL'961°ST 12L°988°T 6LY'E8LLT 65608 TIOEI9ErR'Y 1oz
¥8'89% L1I'TEl 000°00L°01 L9'9EE %50 99%'9ST'LT 965 EIt'E 790°0L9°0¢€ 65608 9€6'6LL 6SH'S 010z
20°66¥ L8SEL 000°000°11 S1'€9¢ %S0 905°00%°62 0v5'688'€ 90067 €€ 656'08 010°965°295°S 6002
89°CTS 8S°6€1 000°00£°11 01'€8¢€ %90 18T°S10°1¢€ S69'81€'Y 9L6'EEE'SE 656'08 LEP'916°08S°S 800T
86'8¥S 8TEFI 000°009°L1 0L'SOv %90 0ZT'SP8'CE L16'PEY'Y 1€1'08Z°LE 656'08 TP SE0'SEY'S LOOT
17'0LS SL'S¥I 00000811 99 vTh %L 0 LY1'08E'vE 10S°9LL'Y 8r9°951°6¢ 65608 0SS 1SE9T'S 900T
98°£6S T8l 000'000°ZT £9°Shh %L0 801'8L0'9€E 9T VEL'Y 1LT'TIg 0P 65608 £2T'8SLF60'S $00T
19°¢19 syl 000°000°Z1 6£°59% %80 L6Y'LLY'LE 818°078'F S1E'86bTH 656'08 LEV'E9T'SLO'Y $00T
Th'8%9 01881 000'008°Z1 (AR %80 §66°C69°6¢€ £01°ebS el 8S9°BET'ES 65608 8¥9°0¥9'198° £00T
08'6LE § 9L61 $ 000°009°1  § £0'09¢ $ %90 968°LY16T $ ST99ILTI § 125 998'1%  § 656°08 TH6'05T'989't § €00z

ende) ende) spuog ende) aneA €10 19N Rueeg spuog uonendog ETTTTY ‘o€ aunp

134 192Qq 14 192Q SANIATY 134 192Q alqexe] 03 puny panss| £juno) pajewnsy Jlqexe ] papuy 1eax

papuog jaN popuog 33N ad4] ssouisng papuog 13N 192Q papuog NI IGQ » uonediqo 8281y

[e10], JAN JO Juadlag [1au5)

SIIANDY adA | ssauisng SANIANIY [BIIUI5)

SYVIA TVvOSI4d NIL LSV
ONIANVLSL1NO 1930 A3ANO4 TVHINTD 40 SOILYY

NVOIHOIN ‘AO¥L 40 ALID



-CIL-

'Spun, 901AI2G 1Ga(J PUE SNUIAY [e10adg ‘[eIouan) sapnjouy

YLL'S 16666t 19 68L'SHS'E 68L'SYT'1 000°00€°C 1102

%80°S 706°$90°99 EP1°LSEE er1°T6T'1 000°690°C 0102

%06'% 6¥¥'CE8'69 805°TTH'E 80S°LLE'] 000°$+0°C 6002

%SS'Y L00'T¥8°69 SSTBLI'E $ST'88E’l 000°06L°1 800T

%I18'Y LEL'STY LY 9SL'TYT'E 9SLTHS T 000°00LT L00T

Y%LL'Y 691°v15°S9 p6s'STI'E P65°009°1 000°€TS°1 900¢

%88v v6'6LT 89 LIT'EEE’E 91°ESL'1 SC6'6LS'1 §002

%9581 8E€C°E0E°LL 6ILEPE YT 61T°1€8°C 00S°TIS T #00T

%l6v PLT'LIE'SY 8T8°LOT'E $96°909°1 £98°009°1 €002

%ST'Y 826'606'99 $ 89¢€°6LLT § LIL'6TTT § [S9°6¥S°'T § 200t

saImipuadxy SaImipuadxy ERITSETS [EY AT 9) jediunig 0€ aung
JUIUILIIAOY) [RIIUIL) 0) [BJUSUWILLIIAOCS) SIET(| [easyy pue popuy Jeax

NAIRS 1GI(] JO ITRIUIIG [e1dURD) jRlO ], e10], 15393} [easiy

SHV3A TvOSId N3L 1SV
SIUNLIANIdX3 TVLININNGIAOD TVHINTD TVIO0L Ol
1830 d3ANO4 NOILYOIT90 TVHINID HO4
S3ANLIANIdX3 30IAH3S 1930
TVNNNY 40 OlLVvY

NVOIHOIN ‘AO¥L 40 ALID




CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

JUNE 30, 2011

Net
General Percentage Amount
Bonded Debt Applicable Applicable
Jurisdiction Outstanding to Troy to Troy
City of Troy $ 25,196,758 100.00% $ 25,196,758
Avondale School District 110,444,455 18.66% 20,608,935
Birmingham School District 212,830,000 3.84% 8,172,672
Bloomfield Hills School District 9,530,000 2.09% 199,177
Lamphere School District 15,460,000 14.01% 2,165,946
Royal Oak School District 72,845,000 2.23% 1,624,444
Troy School District 116,040,000 100.00% 116,040,000
Warren School District 195,415,000 8.05% 15,730,908
Oakland County 97,306,733 8.73% 8,494,878
Oakland Intermediate School District 62,379,412 8.19% 5,108,874
Macomb Intermediate School District - 1.09% -
Oakland County Community College 5,075,000 8.79% 446,093
Total overlapping debt 897,325,600 178,591,925
Total direct and overlapping debt $ 922522358 $ 203,788,683

Source: Municipal Advisory Council of Michigan; Detroit, Michigan.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
JUNE 30, 2011

Assessed Valuation at December 31, 2009

General obligation debt
Emergency bonds

Special assessment bonds

Total debt

$§ 4988518313

Legal Margin
Percentage of
Annual State Equalized Legal Debt
Net Debt Valuation Amount Margin
$ 34,545,000 10.0% $ 498,851,831 § 464,306,831
- 37.5% 1,870,694,367 1,870,694,367
- 12.0% 598,622,198 598,622,198

$ 34,545,000

5 2968,168,396

$  2,933,623,396

The statutory debt limits of net bonded indebtedness incurred for all public purposes shall
not at any one time exceed 10% of the assessed valuation of taxable property in the

City ($4.988,518,313), except that this limit may be exceeded by 3/8ths of 1% in case of fire,

flood or other calamity. This limitation does not include bonds issued in anticipation of the payment
of special assessments, nor bonds issued persuant to court order for sewage or garbage

disposal systems.

The Michigan State Bond Act provides that the total debt in special assessment bonds, which would
require that the City pledge its faith and credit, shall not exceed 12% of the assessed valuation of
taxable property of the City, nor shall such bonds be issued in any calendar year in excess

of 3% unless voted.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Debt Limit $ 565,256,394 § 595,569,740 $ 618,808,426 § 633,722,297 $§ 652,607,433
Total net debt applicable to limit (33,840,000) (58,875,000) (48,680,000) (47,405,000) (45,855,000)
Legal debt margin § 531,416,394 § 536,694,740 § 570,128,426 $ 586,317,297 § 606,752,433
Total net debt applicable to the limit
as a percentage of debt limit 5.99% 9.89% 7.87% 7.48% 7.03%

Fiscal Year

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Debt Limit $ 660,880,475 § 642,265,981 $ 622,709,405 § 583,886,924 § 498,851,831
Total net debt applicable to limit (44,130,000) (42,220,000) (40,050,000) (37,460,000) (34,545,000)
Legal debt margin $ 616,750,475 S 600,045,981 S 582,659,405 $ 546,426,924 $ 464,306,831
Total net debt applicable to the limit
as a percentage of debt limit 6.68% 6.57% 6.43% 6.42% 6.92%
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Building Authority bonds
Debt Service
Fiscal Year
Ended Collections Principal Interest Total Coverage (1)
2002 £ - b3 - s - § - N/A
2003 - - 511,294 511,294 0%
2004 - - 557,770 557,770 0%
2005 962,132 - 557,770 557,770 172%
2006 1,173,020 200,000 554,520 754,520 155%
2007 1,057,265 200,000 547,307 747,307 141%
2008 985,813 300,000 539,038 839,038 117%
2009 923,908 300,000 526,950 826,950 112%
2010 974,051 300,000 515,200 815,200 119%
2011 940,775 400,000 501,945 901,945 104%
Michigan Transportation Fund Bonds
Debt Service
Fiscal Year
Ended Collections (2) Principal Interest Total Coverage
2002 $ 2,389,260 s 1,200,000 $ 221,538 $ 1,421,538 168%%
2003 2,433,431 1,300,000 164,538 1,464,538 166%
2004 2,627,194 125,000 103,438 228,438 1150%
2005 2,548,178 150,000 97,438 247438 1030%
2006 2,529,103 175,000 90,088 265,088 954%
2007 2,502,483 175,000 81,338 256,338 976%
2008 2,461,676 175,000 72,588 247,588 994%
2009 2,371,142 175,000 63,838 238,838 993%
2010 2,329,592 175,000 54,913 226,913 1013%
2011 2,363,803 175,000 45,900 220,900 1070%
Special Assessment Bonds
Debt Service
Fiscal Year
Ended Collections Principal Interest Total Coverage (3)
2002 $ 37,738 $ 25,000 $ 12,738 $ 37,738 100%
2003 36,056 25,000 11,056 36,056 100%
2004 34,369 25,000 8,369 34,369 100%
2005 32,675 25,000 7.675 32,675 100%
2006 55,125 50,000 5,125 55,125 100%
2007 51,713 50,000 1,713 51,713 100%
2008 - - - - N/A
2009 - - - - N/A
2010 - - - - N/A
201 - - - - N/A

(1) Capitalized Interest 2003, 2004,
(2) Fifty percent of state gas and weight taxes can be used for debt payments.

(3) Customers may choose to make special assessment payments up-front to avoid paying interest
to the City,which creates uneven payment streams over the life of the assessment.
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2001 - 2002
2002 - 2003
2003 - 2004
2004 - 2005
2005 - 2006
2006 - 2007
2007 - 2008
2008 - 2009
2009 - 2010
2010 - 2011

1,938
1,867
2,110
2,136
1,927
1,696
1,588
1,251
1,185

940

CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

BUILDING CONSTRUCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

permits
permits
permits
permits
permits
permits
permits
permits
permits
permits
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143,908,032
141,941,808
140,823,926
143,697,564
114,459,317
113,160,162
103,420,413

99,128,945

56,329,455

81,414,322

estimated value
estimated value
estimated value
estimated value
estimated value
estimated value
estimated value
estimated value
estimated value
estimated value
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

STATE SHARED REVENUES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year State Shared
Ended June 30 Revenue
2002 $ 8,348,727
2003 7,618,966
2004 7,101,729
2005 6,906,372
2006 6,844,167
2007 6,635,508
2008 6,633,938
2009 6,313,999
2010 5,615,666
2011 5,615,666
GAS AND WEIGHT TAXES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Total
Fiscal Year Type of Street Gas and Weight Tax
Ended June 30 Major Road Local Road (Act 51) Receipts
2002 $ 3,415,410 $ 1,363,109 $ 4,778,519
2003 3,479,968 1,386,893 4,866,861
2004 3,751,867 1,502,521 5,254,388
2005 3,647,503 1,448,852 5,096,355
2006 3,628,794 1,429,411 5,058,205
2007 3,587,980 1,416,986 5,004,966
2008 3,529,518 1,393,834 4,923,352
2009 3,396,979 1,345,306 4,742,285
2010 3,337,309 1,321,874 4,659,183
2011 3,386,023 1,341,582 4,727,605

Source: City of Troy
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

LABOR AGREEMENTS
Number of
Expiration Employees
Name Date Covered

American Federation of State, County, and Municipal
Employees, AFSCME - Public Works Employees 6/30/2013 66
Michigan Association of Police - Clerical, Police Services Aides 6/30/2013 4]
Troy Command Officers Association - Command Police Officers 6/30/2014 17
Troy Police Officers Associtation - Police Officers 6/30/2015 94
Troy Firestaff Officers Association - Fire Career Professionals 6/30/2014 8
Troy Communication Supervisors Association - Civilian Communications
Supervisors 6/30/2013 9
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i e h m a n n 1500 W. Big Beaver Rd.
y’ 2" Floor

Troy, MI 48084
Ph: 248.952.5000
Fx: 248.952.5750
www.rehmann.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

December 1, 2011

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Troy, Michigan

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Troy, Michigan (the “City”) as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated December 1, 2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Govermment Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as described above.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

In addition, we noted certain matters that we reported to management of the City of Troy in a
separate letter dated December 1, 2011.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council, management,

others within the organization, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Aol feleo:
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i e h m a n n 1500 W. Big Beaver Rd.
y’ 2" Floor

Troy, MI 48084
Ph: 248.952.5000
Fx: 248.952.5750
www.rehmann.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

December 1, 2011

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Troy, Michigan

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Troy, Michigan (the City) with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of
the City’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2011. The City’s major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the
responsibility of the City of Troy, Michigan’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the City’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit
does not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2011. However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance
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of noncompliance with those requirements, which is required to be reported in accordance with
OMB Circular A-133 and which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as item 2011-1.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City of Troy, Michigan is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the
City’s internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose
of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weakness, as defined above.

The City’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the City’s response and, accordingly,
we express no opinion on the response.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council, management,

others in the organization, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Relaanprter
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City of Troy, Michigan
Note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Federal Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title CFDA Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Pass through Oakland County, Michigan
Community Development Block Grant 14.218 $ 148,800
U.S. Department of Justice:
Bulletproof Vest Grant 16.607 13,756
JAG - Contract No. 2009-SB-B9-1863 16.804 5,134
Total U.S. Department of Justice 18,890
U.S. Department of Transportation:
Pass through Michigan State Department of Transportation
Highway Planning & Construction
HH6088 20.205 611,715
RR5240 20.205 577,930
HH6240 20.205 177,448
RR6189 20.205 664
RR3172 20.205 122,684
RR5451 20.205 773
Total Highway Planning and Construction 1,491,214
U.S. Department of Transportation Highway Safety Funds:
Pass through Michigan Office of Highway Safety Planning
MACP Award PT-09-70 20.600 15,000
Total U.S. Department of Transportaion 1,506,214
U.S. Department of Energy Labor & Economic Growth:
AARA Energy Efficiency and Conservation Grant 81.128 394,875
U.S. Department of Homeland Security:
FEMA-Assistance to Firefighter's Grant 97.044 102,854
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 2,171,633

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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THE CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

NOTE TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes
the federal grant activity of the City of Troy, Michigan under programs of the federal
government for the year ended June 30, 2011. The information in this schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Because the schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of the City, it is not intended to and does not present the
financial position, changes in net assets or cash flows of the City.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in
OMB Circular A-133, Cost Principles for Non-profit Organizations, wherein certain types
of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts
shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of
business to amounts reported as expenditures in the prior years. Pass-through entity
identifying numbers are presented where available.

o T S S S S
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THE CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiencies identified?

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiencies identified?

Unqualified
yes X no
yes X none reported
yes X no

yes X no

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance

for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with Circular A-133,

Section 510(a)?

Identification of Major Programs:

CFDA Number(s)
20.205
81.128

Dollar threshold used to distinguish

between Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

yes X none reported
Unqualified
X _yes no

Name of Federal Program or Cluster
Highway Planning & Construction

Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block
Grant Program

$300,000

Yes
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THE CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None reported

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
U.S. Department of Energy, Labor & Economic Growth

Energy Efficiency and Conservation Grant CFDA #81.128

2011-1 - Reporting — Immaterial Noncompliance

Criteria: According to the grant agreement between the City of Troy and the U.S. Department
of Energy, Labor & Economic Growth, Federal Financial Reports, Progress Reports
and ARRA Section 1512 reports are required to be submitted each quarter to the U.S.
Department of Energy within 75 days after quarter-end.

Condition:There were four instances where the City submitted their reports late to the U.S.
Department of Energy. One instance was with the Federal Financial Report, two
instances were with the Progress Reports and one instance was with the ARRA
Section 1512 reports.

Cause: The City had a change in the personnel of who was responsible for submitting the
reports and they were unaware of the timing of which these reports were required to
be submitted to the U.S. Department of Energy.

Effect: As a result of this condition, the City did not fully comply with the reporting
requirements of the grant.

Recommendation:
We recommend that the City carefully review each grant agreement and compliance
supplement (where applicable) to determine the applicable compliance requirements,
and develop internal controls to ensure they are met.

View of

Responsible

Officials: The City will continue to work towards developing and maintaining internal controls
over compliance to ensure that they are in compliance with all federal program
requirements going forward.
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THE CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

SECTION IV - PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

None noted
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